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B-BBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

BEE Black Economic Empowerment 

CEO Chief Executive Officer 

COGTA Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs 

CSI Corporate Social Investment

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

LEDET
Limpopo Economic Development Environment and 
Tourism 

LEGDP      
Limpopo Employment Growth and Development 
Programme

LTA Limpopo Tourism Agency 

MEC Member of Executive Council

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NCB National Convention Bureau

NDT National Department of Tourism

NGO Non-governmental organisation

NTSS National Tourism Sector Strategy

PCB                   Provincial Convention Bureau

PPP Public-Private Partnership

SADC Southern African Development Community

SALGA South African Local Government Association

SAT South African Tourism

SETA Sector Education and Training Authority

SMEs Small and Medium Enterprises

SMMEs Small, Medium and Micro-Enterprises

Stats SA            Statistics South Africa

TFCA Trans-frontier Conservation Area

TFDS Total Foreign Direct Spend

TSA Tourism Satellite Account

VFR Visiting Friends and Relatives

LWR                 Limpopo Wildlife Resorts

2. LIST OF 
ABBREVIATIONS 



3.1. VISION 

LTA aspires to be “A Leading Eco-Tourism Destination in 
Southern Africa”

3.2. MISSION

The purpose of LTA is to “Promote and Offer Quality, 
Sustainable and Diverse Tourism Experience”.

3.3. CORE VALUES 

INTEGRITY  
Conduct beyond reproach will be deployed by staff.

RESPECT 
Display respect in dealing with all stakeholders, be they 
colleagues, other departments, business partners in the 
tourism industry or to Limpopo, which is best displayed 
through effective listening and communication, as 
well as seeking first to understand them before being 
understood. 

EXCELLENCE  
The entire LTA organisation, shall continually strive for 
service excellence delivery towards all our tourists.

RESPONSIBILITY 
All tourism development, management and activities shall 
deliver on all areas of economic, social, environmental and 
personal, growth sustainability.

COMMUNICATION  
LTA will strive to communicate effectively and efficiently 
within and outside the organisation.

ACCOUNTABILITY 
Obligation of an individual or organisation to account for 
its actions (Financials, Performance and Social), accepts 
responsibility for their disclose results in a transparent 
manner.

3.4. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTATED    
       GOALS 

To provide for the sustainable development, management 
and promotion of tourism in Limpopo Province.

3. STRATEGIC 
    OVERVIEW A Leading 

Eco-Tourism 
Destination in 

Southern Africa
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LTA is a Schedule 3C entity (PFMA) reporting to Limpopo Department of Economic Development, Environment and 
Tourism (LEDET) and its programmes and activities are guided by a number of constitutional and legislative mandates 
as follows: 

CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATES:

• National Tourism Sector Strategy (NTSS) 
• Global Competitiveness Strategy 
• Airlift Strategy 
• Tourism Act 1993 no. 72, Tourism Second Amendment Act 2000 no. 70 Tourism Development Strategy 
• Tourism Heritage and Culture Strategy 
• Rural Tourism Strategy. 

THE FOLLOWING ACTS ARE RELEVANT AT PROVINCIAL LEVELS: 

• Tourism Growth Strategy 
• Limpopo Tourism Act 2009 
• Limpopo Environmental Management Act 2003 no 7 
• Limpopo Employment and Development Strategy 

LEGISLATIVE MANDATES

Functions and powers of the Limpopo Tourism Agency are:
• Develop and implement a tourism marketing strategy within the framework of the provincial tourism strategies; 
• Undertake and facilitate tourism research; 
• Support tourism transformation and capacity building programmes; 
• Enhance and enable tourism investment opportunities on provincial nature reserves; 
• Enhance the integration of tourism programmes through the establishment of formal partnerships with 

municipalities; 
• Initiate tourism product development in provincial nature reserves; 
• Provide hospitality services in provincial nature reserves; 
• Subject to the PFMA and other applicable legislation, establish strategic partnerships with community co-

operatives, organizations, government structures and tourism organizations for enhancing tourism marketing; 
• Establish and maintain a database containing information relating to: 
• Existing tourist attractions, infrastructure, facilities, services, location and access; 
• Natural and cultural attractions that may be developed as tourist attractions in the province; and 
• New areas of tourism activity and potential sites for these activities. 
• Advise the MEC on any matter relating to the tourism industry; and perform any other function the MEC may 

assign or delegate to the Agency. 
 

4. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER 
    MANDATES
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5. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

COMPANY SECRETARY

CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER

EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR: 

COMMERCIAL 
OPERATIONS

EXECUTIVE: 
HUMAN 

RESOURCES

EXECUTIVE: 
TOURISM AND 
MARKETING

LTA   BOARD
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We take great pleasure in reporting on the 
performance and activities of the Limpopo Tourism 
Agency (LTA) for the financial year 2015/16.  The year 
under review was exciting and filled with demanding 
and enriching tourism activities and programmes. 
The Board, upon its appointment in 2015, had a very 
clear mandate on what was expected of it. We are 
elated that the board has been able to realise the bulk 
of targets set. 

Key among these were, developing a new marketing 
strategy, appointing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 
developing a new structure and implementing the 
EXCO Resolution No. 7 of 2015/16 of transferring 
Limpopo Wildlife Resorts (LWR) to LEDET thereby 
leaving LTA with only one mandate of marketing 
Limpopo Province as a tourist destination of choice. 

We as the LTA are proud to announce that despite 
the unpredictable and volatile economic situation in 
the world, tourism as a sector has continued to show 
resilience and growth nationally and Limpopo has been 
a leader amongst the provinces. 

Limpopo Tourism has been on the growth trajectory 
over the past years and this saw the province scoop the 
first position when it was announced the most visited 
destination in the domestic tourism arena. Limpopo 
Tourism hosted 2015/2016 Domestic Tourism month 
in partnership with South African Tourism.  We as the 
board aim to raise the bar even higher in the new 
financial year. 

The entity has received a qualified audit opinion for 
the third year in a row and that should improve. As 
LEDET, we further wish to draw the Board’s attention to 
compliance and governance issues as it will be critical 
for it to conduct its oversight responsibilities in ensuring 
that the entity improves on the Auditor General’s 
opinion. 

____________________________
SEAPARO SEKOATI 
MEC FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, 
ENVIRONMENT AND TOURISM
Limpopo Tourism Agency

MEC FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, 
ENVIRONMENT AND TOURISM
MR. SEAPARO SEKOATI 

MEC’S FOREWORD 
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The year under review, 2015/16, like the previous, has 
not only been challenging but had much to celebrate. 
It is almost a year since the appointment of the present 
Board in office, since 1 May 2015. The Board was beset 
with numerous obligations to meet. The mandate from 
the shareholder was clearly articulated. The legislative 
requirements as espoused in Limpopo Tourism Act 2 of 
2009, remains the mainstay of guidance and direction 
for the entity. Upon its appointment, the Board set itself 
targets to achieve. Key among these were, attainment 
of improved audit opinion, developing a new marketing 
strategy, appointing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 
developing a new structure and implementing the 
EXCO Resolution No. 7 of 2015/16 of transferring 
Limpopo Wildlife Resorts (LWR) to LEDET thereby 
leaving LTA with only one mandate of marketing 
Limpopo Province as a tourist destination of choice.

We are grateful about the resilience displayed by the 
tourism sector in the country and our province in 
particular. In 2014, our province was announced the 
most visited province in our country on the domestic 
tourism front. The transfer of LWR to the Shareholder 
will give the entity a clear strategic focus as captured 
in the founding legislation. We are pleased as this is an 
indication that our province is on the right track and on 
the growth trajectory. Worth mentioning is that LTA is 
gradually turning the corner as it received a qualified 
audit opinion from the Auditor General. It is our 
intention to further improve on this given that we have 
a singular mandate as the entity.

A few months after its appointment, the Board went 
into a strategic session to develop a new marketing 
strategy aligned to the founding legislation. The Board 
also appointed the Chief Executive Officer as the 
accounting officer and the Agency has since stabilised. 
As embraced by the Limpopo Development Plan, 
tourism is a key sector that contributes to the gross 
domestic product (GDP) of the province. Stakeholders 
in the tourism sector need one another to fight against 
the triple challenge of poverty, unemployment and 
inequality in our society as identified by the National 
Development Plan (NDP). The legislation governing 
tourism endeavours to align the industry so that there 
can be a coordinated approach. The White Paper on 
Tourism of 1996, which is regarded as a blueprint of 
the tourism sector, states, “In South Africa, signs of a 
more forward-looking private sector are emerging”.  
The document further emphasises, “It is through taking 
a broader view of the product offered, and building 
partnerships with the government, local communities 
and other private sector interests, that the highest levels 
of customer satisfaction can be achieved”. 

The industry, trade, municipalities, communities and 
tourism stakeholders in general may not win in their 
effort to grow the economy in the province as long 

THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD
MR. ANDREW KHIBA DIPELA

OVERVIEW BY
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as they still continue to work in silos. The White Paper on Tourism again emphasises cooperation amongst all 
sections of the society as it stated that “tourism should be Government led, Private sector driven and Community 
based”. This is the reason why the LTA Board worked so relentlessly to develop a new focused strategy that is also 
outward looking to bring all the tourism stakeholders together in an effort to grow the industry and our economy. 
The perfect environment created by Government for dialogue has not been used optimally to our advantage. 
Efforts will continually be made through stakeholder engagement forums to harmonise the relations among 
the stakeholders in the sector. To this end, transformation in the tourism industry still remains a thorny issue for 
debate. Plans were put in place to accelerate the process but not much has been accomplished. The Board will 
not be oblivious to this conundrum but will make the necessary intervention to resolve the impasse. 

LTA continues to make a difference in respect of exposing small, medium and macro enterprises (SMME’s) to 
various platforms for them to acquire experience and gain their market share in the tourism value chain. We have 
in this regard, been able to expose eleven (11) of such enterprises to Tourism INDABA international trade show in 
Kwazulu Natal Province during the period under review. Some of our tourism products did so well in the Lilizela 
Awards at national level. We wish to congratulate both provincial and national winners of the awards in various 
categories. We commit to exposing even a higher number of these enterprises at other platforms for them to gain 
market access. The Board plans to, in future, have an after-care programme for the incubated SMMEs to be able 
to track their progress and measure the impact of their exposure to other platforms.   

It is the intention of this Board to build and enhance partnerships with Local Government in order to improve 
our relations with municipalities but to also collaborate with them on their activities. This will help the entity to 
focus on local tourism activities such as township and village tourism with media tours organised to expose these 
treasures in our province.  

The entity will continue working closely with the office of the Auditor General to fine tune modalities of turning 
the situation around. The Board draws its strength from management and staff as they are an important resource 
for the entity. The success of the entity for the year under review can be attributed to loyalty, commitment and 
selflessness of the Board in the execution of their fiduciary duties inherent in every member. In unison, the Agency 
can and will be able to achieve better performance outcomes.      

We wish to thank everybody who contributed towards the success of LTA during the period under review. 
• Our Premier, the Hon. Chupu Stanley Mathabatha, who ensured that tourism, was on top of his agenda. We 

stand encouraged by his recognition.
• Our MEC, Mr. Seaparo Sekoati, for his support and counsel. 
• Head of Department of LEDET, Mr. Solly Kgopong for his guidance.

____________________________
K.A DIPELA
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD
Limpopo Tourism Agency
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The Member of the Executive Council (MEC) 
responsible for Economic Development, Environment 
and Tourism, the Hon Seaparo Sekoati (MPL).

The Chairperson of Limpopo Tourism Agency Board, 
Mr. Andrew Dipela and Members of the Board.
 
It gives us great pleasure to present the 2015/16 
Annual Performance Report to you. Part of our 
responsibility to the Board and the Shareholder, 
Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and 
Tourism (LEDET) is to ensure maximum accountability 
in the execution of our mandate in respect of the 
Limpopo Tourism Act No. 2 of 2009.  To this end, we 
wish to, as part of the fulfilment of this responsibility, 
submit our full account of the activities of Limpopo 
Tourism Agency (LTA) for the financial year 2015/16. 

Once again, 2015/16 was a very eventful year for 
LTA. The tourism industry continued to grow globally, 
South Africa and our Province. Our Province was 
announced the most visited during 2014 calendar year. 
This undoubtedly warrants us as a tourism authority, to 
develop innovative ways of maintaining this momentum 
instead of dropping the ball. It is crystal clear that the 
work ahead is enormous after the Provincial Executive 
Council (EXCO) resolved that LTA should only focus 
on marketing tourism in the Province. The Resolution 
directed that Limpopo Wildlife Resorts (LWR) should 
be transferred to LEDET with effect from 1 April 2016. 
This is in line with EXCO Resolution 7 of 2015/16 for the 
amalgamation of conservation management. 

Despite the eminent changes in our mandate, 
enormous strides were made in the nature reserve 
rehabilitation programme that commenced during 
the previous financial year, 2014/15. The programme 
saw a number of state owned tourism products in 
the province refurbished to improve their standard to 
match that of their counterparts in the private sector. 
The entity concluded community empowerment 
partnership projects, and upgraded infrastructure 
projects. In addition the entity participated in Tourism 
INDABA and supported and mentored tourism 
entrepreneurs to gain market access.   

The Province played host to a very successful World 
Tourism Day celebration, which was presided over by 
Tourism Minister, the Hon. Derek Hanekom. Limpopo 
Province continues to be one of the major recipients of 
tourism arrivals from South Africa’s core international 
markets given its broad tourism product offering and 
appeal. 

We have various provincial events that contribute to 
bringing high volumes of people into the Province on 
an annual basis. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER STATEMENT
MR. NDUMISO MATLALA
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The migration LWR to LEDET required a serious review of LTA’s strategic business, corporate plan and 
organisational design to be aligned our new business responsibility.  LTA is thus entering the 2016/17 financial year 
with a new strategy. 

In delivering its mandate, LTA draws its influence from national and provincial policies and strategies alike, which 
clearly serve to guide, promote and grow tourism in the province.

Of importance to note is that LTA’s newly revised mandate is now keenly focused on driving increased tourism into 
and within the Limpopo Province through marketing. Our Marketing Strategy has been aligned to the strategies of 
Brand SA, SA Tourism, National Tourism Sector Strategy (NTSS) and Limpopo Development Plan derived from the 
National Development Plan. 

The Entity is responsible for the generic marketing of the six (6) tourism clusters in the Province, namely:
• Golf and Game
• Hunting and Safari 
• Family and Recreation 
• Special interest 
• Mega-conservation 
• Meetings Incentives Conference and Events (MICE)

We wish to thank everybody who contributed towards the success of LTA during the period under review. 
• Our Board for the support and guidance 
• Our Executive Management and the entire staff for giving their all during the most difficult times.
• My colleagues, CEO’s of other tourism authorities in other Provinces, for their willingness to always share good 

practices on how best we can grow tourism in our country. 
• My colleagues,  CEO’s of other State Owned Entities in our Province, for their unqualified support.
• Members of the media for their coverage of our Province for ensuring that Limpopo does not remain in 

obscurity.

We present this report with pride about our successes hoping to maintain the momentum after being named the 
most visited destination in the country on the tourism front. We continue to recognize that tourism can only grow 
to serve the needs of our people. We enter the new financial year with more dedication, vigour, determination 
and resolve hoping to succeed even more. 

____________________________
NDUMISO MATLALA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Limpopo Tourism Agency
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Statement of responsibility for performance information 
for the year ended 31 march 2016

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the Limpopo Tourism Agency’s 
performance information and for the judgements made 
in this information.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for 
establishing, and implementing a system of internal 
control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to 
the integrity and reliability of performance information.
In my opinion, the performance information fairly 
reflects the actual achievements against planned 
objectives, indictors and targets as per the strategic and 
annual performance plan of the public entity for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2016.

The Limpopo Tourism Agency performance information 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 has been examined 
by the external auditors and their report is presented 
on page 64. 

The performance information of Limpopo Tourism 
Agency set out on page 17 to page 31 was approved 
by the board.

____________________________
NDUMISO MATLALA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Limpopo Tourism Agency
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2. AUDITOR’S REPORT: 
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

3.  OVERVIEW OF LIMPOPO       
  TOURISM AGENCY’S       
  PERFORMANCE

The AGSA/auditor currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to 
provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance 
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings being 
reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 62 of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

3.1. SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT   
(a)  Develop and implement a tourism marketing strategy within the framework of the provincial
  tourism strategies;
(b)  Undertake and facilitate tourism research;
(c)  Support tourism transformation and capacity building programmes;
(d)  Enhance and enable tourism investment opportunities on provincial nature reserves;
(e)  Enhance the integration of tourism programmes through the establishment of formal partnerships with  
 municipalities;
(f)  Initiate tourism product development in provincial nature reserves;
(g)  Provide hospitality services in provincial nature reserves;
(h)  Subject to the PFMA and other applicable legislation, establish strategic partnerships with community   
 co-operatives, organisations, government structures and tourism organisations for enhancing tourism   
 marketing;

(i)  Establish and maintain a database containing information relating to -
(i)  Existing tourist attractions, infrastructure, facilities, services, location and access;
(ii) Natural and cultural attractions that may be developed as tourist attractions in the province; and
(iii) New areas of tourism activity and potential sites for these activities; 
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3.3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME 
ORIENTED GOALS
PROGRAMME STRATEGIC GOAL PROGRESS

OFFICE OF THE CEO

To provide for the sustainable 
development, management 
and promotion of tourism in 
Limpopo province

Complied with all governance prescripts
Engaged stakeholders
HUMAN RESOURCES

HUMAN RESOURCES

The implementation of the performance management 
system has contributed to the attainment of the planned 
objectives of the year under review. 
The retention of 193 permanent staff, implementation of  
transformational programmes  as well  maintenance of 
harmonious relations with organized labour contributed 
to the achievement of the entity’s  strategic goals to 
ensure that the organisation  function effectively and 
efficiently

FINANCE AND 
SUPPORT SERVICES Improved audit opinion from disclaimer to qualified

LIMPOPO AND 
WILDLIFE RESORTS

The implementation of the product development, 
tourism investment and hospitality services contributed 
to:
• Reserve infrastructure improved in Mphephu and 

Acacia
• Twelve community partnership empowerment 

projects concluded
• 87 Jobs was created through the EPWP project
• Hospitality and customer services improved
• 13% Increase in revenue generated from R7 493 

492.52 to R8 576 799.59 (R8 342 733.53 from  
Resorts and R234 066.06 from permit operators)

• 34% increase in tourist arrivals was registered from 
92 638 to 140 443 and 3069 rooms were sold.

TOURISM MARKETING

The following numbers contributed to the achievement 
of the goal:
• Domestic trips are at 5.1m and spend of R3.8b
• International trips at 1.2m and spend of R4.4b
• Average spend per day of R850
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4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION   
 BY PROGRAMME
4.1. PROGRAMME 1: OFFICE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

PURPOSE   
The purpose of the programmes is to ensure effective, efficient and economic management of the entity. Ensuring 
that Board and its activities is well managed. That all the identified top ten risks are mitigated and reviewed 
regularly. It is aimed at intensifying communication amongst the staff, industry and stakeholders at large. Put an 
effective plan that will monitor and develop strategic goals of the entity in line with the mandate given in place. 

There are a number of responsibilities this program has including amongst others, managing the entity effectively 
efficiently and economically; ensuring that the Board of the entity is managed and that its activities are funded 
appropriately; developing an all-encompassing corporate culture; identifying the top ten (10) risks of the entity as 
well as the mitigation thereof and reviewing them regularly. Communication to both staff and the tourism industry 
as a whole must be done on an on-going basis, while ensuring that there is proper planning and monitoring of 
the entity and regularly reviewing the strategies. 
 
Sub-Programmes

• Strategic operations
• Board
• Legal Services
• Risk and Compliance
• Communications

Strategic Objectives

• Organizational performance improved

Strategic objectives, performance 
indicators planned targets and 
actual achievements

OFFICE OF THE CEO

Strategic 
objectives

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual 
Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

Comment on 
deviations

Organizational 
performance 
improved

Improved 
organisational 
performance

To improve 
organisational 
performance

Improved 
organisational 
performance

Improved 
organisational 
performance

None 
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and 
actual achievements

PROGRAMME / SUB-PROGRAMME 1: OFFICE OF THE CEO

Performance 
Indicator

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned 
Target

Actual 
Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement 

for 2015/2016

Comment 
on 

deviations

Number of Risk 
Management Reports 
submitted

Four (4)  risk 
management 
reports submitted 
to the Risk and 
Audit committee

Submit four (4) 
Risk Management 
Reports 

Four (4)  risk 
management 
reports submitted 

No deviations None 

Number of Anti-Fraud
and Corruption Reports
submitted

Not measured Submit two 
(2) Anti-Fraud 
and Corruption 
Reports

Two (2) Anti-
Fraud and 
Corruption 
Reports 
submitted

No deviations None

Number of compliance 
reports submitted

Not measured Five (5) 
compliance 
reports submitted

Five (5) 
compliance 
reports submitted

No deviations None

Number of compliance 
plans submitted

Not measured Two (2) 
compliance plans 
submitted (Strat 
documents)

Two (2) 
compliance 
plans submitted 
(Strategic 
and Annual 
Performance 
Plans)

No deviations None

Number of performance 
agreement concluded

None One (1) 
performance 
agreement 
concluded  

One (1) 
performance 
agreement 
concluded  
(between the 
Board and 
Shareholder)

No deviations None

PROGRAMME’S CONTRIBUTION 

• Governance: programme was able to ensure compliance in the organisation.
• Stakeholder Relations: organisation was able to engage and maintain relations with internal and external  
 stakeholders.
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS
2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R R R R R R

CEO 1 412 360 706 113 706 247 411 996 239 719 172 277

Board 
Management 2 687 640 2 535 927 151 713 2 200 000 2 100 888 99 112

Communications - - - - 53 782 (53 782)

Consultants and 
Professional fees - - - 286 004 49 305 236 699

Risk and 
Compliance - - - 50 000 - 50 000

Employee 
Compensation 5 781 893 5 696 782 85 111 6 761 008 5 500 297 1 260 711

Capex 160 000 81 472 78 528 - - -

Total 10 041 893 9 020 294 1 021 599 9 709 008 7 943 991 1 765 017

The entity will embark on an organisational re-design programme to ensure that the new strategy is aligned to the 
organisational structure and functions. 

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

There were no changes to planned targets.



4.2. PROGRAMME 2: HUMAN RESOURCE

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

PROGRAMME NAME:  HUMAN RESOURCE

Strategic 
objectives

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual 
Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

Comment on 
deviations

Strategic  human 
resource services 
to divisions 
provided

Improved 
organisational 
performance

Five (5) funded 
vacant positions 
filled.

Filled one (1) 
funded positions.

Four (4) funded 
positions not 
filled 

The Board 
has passed a 
moratorium on 
the filling of all 
vacant positions 
except the filling 
of the CEO due 
to the transfer 
of LWR to the 
Department

Not measured Four (4) HR 
Programmes 
implemented

Implemented
four (4)
strategies for all
HR programmes
• Human 

Resources 
Management

• Employee 
Wellness

• Human 
Resources 
Development

• Employee 
Relations

No deviations None

Strategic objectives, performance indicators planned 
targets and actual achievements

Purpose
To provide effective and efficient human resources support services in 
Limpopo Tourism Agency.

Sub-Programmes
• Human Resources Management  • Employee Wellness
• Human Resources Development  • Employee Relations

HR Objectives
• To improve organisational performance
• To coordinate and implement transformational programmes
• To ensure compliance to labour legislation and human resources policies

Mr. Sello Maleka
Executive Human Resources



PROGRAMME / SUB-PROGRAMME 2: HUMAN RESOURCE

Strategic 
objectives

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual 
Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

Comment on 
deviations

Number  of  
funded vacant 
positions filled  
within 6 months

Filled 24 Funded 
vacant positions

Five (5) funded 
vacant positions 
filled.

Filled one (1) 
funded vacant 
position 

Four positions not 
filled

The Board 
has passed a 
moratorium on 
the filling of all 
vacant positions 
except the filling 
of the CEO due 
to the transfer 
of LWR to the 
Department.

Number of HR 
Programmes 
concluded. 

Implemented 
four (4) strategies 
for all HR 
programmes.
• Human 

Resources 
Management

• Employee 
Wellness

• Human 
Resources 
Development

• Employee 
Relations

Four (4) HR 
Programmes 
implemented

Implemented
four (4)
strategies for all
HR programmes
• Human 

Resources 
Management

• Employee 
Wellness

• Human 
Resources 
Development

• Employee 
Relations

No deviations None

Key performance indicators, planned targets and 
actual achievements

PROGRAMME’S CONTRIBUTION 
The appointment of the Chief Executive Officer resulted in the provision of strategic leadership within the 
entity and plans to spearhead the domestic marketing initiatives of Limpopo Tourism Agency. The entity filled 
six positions emanated from 2014/15 financial year. The strategic programmes covered the following strategic 
areas:- human resources management which  ensured smooth administration, employee wellness programmes 
were implemented thus ensuring a productive workforce, and learnership programmes to ensure that the entity 
contributed to the provincial labour market, and employee relations that ensured improved communication and 
stable workplace environment. 

STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER PERFORMANCE
The entity will embark on an organisational re-design programme to ensure that the new strategy is aligned to the 
organisational structure and functions. 

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS
There were no changes to planned targets.
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R R R R R R

Human Resources 
Management 677 664 534 682 142 982 336,815 511,331 (174,516)

Human Resources 
Development - - - 20,000 1,300 18,700

Employee 
Wellness - - - - 11,152 (11,152)

Employee 
Relations - - - - 71,465 (71,465)

Compensation of 
Employees 6 599 113 6 612 619 (13 506) 7,678 140 7,089 838 588 302

Capex 20 396 10 396 10 000 50 000 29 040 20 960

Total 7 297 173 7 157 697 139 476 8,084 955 7,714 126 370 829



4.3. PROGRAMME 3: FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

Strategic objectives, performance indicators planned 
targets and actual achievements

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

PROGRAMME 3: FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

Strategic 
objectives

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual 
Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

Comment on 
deviations

To provide 
effective and 
efficient financial 
management.

12 In-year 
monitoring 
reports  

12 In-year 
monitoring 
reports  

12 In-year 
monitoring 
reports  

No deviation None

Break even 
(94.3% budget 
spent)

Break even 
(100% budget 
management)

Break even       
(93% budget 
management)

7% unspent
Delay in finalizing 
the infrastructure 
projects 

To facilitate 
procurement 
of goods and 
services of the 
right quality, price 
and time as well 
as safeguarding 
of assets

Not measured 
12 statutory SCM 
performance 
reports produced  

12 statutory SCM 
performance 
reports produced  

No deviation None

Not measured 
Two(2) assets 
verification 
reports produced

Two(2) assets 
verification 
reports produced

No deviation None

To provide 
reliable 
information and 
communication 
technology (ICT) 
support

Not measured 
Four (4) business 
continuity report 
produced

Four (4) business 
continuity report 
produced

No deviation None

Mr. Sammy Manamela 
Chief Financial Officer

PURPOSE
This programme’s purpose is to provide policy direction, facilitating the effective 
and efficient management of Assets, Liabilities, Financial Systems, Information 
Technology and Supply Chain Management. To ensure sound financial 
management and financial accountability in the organisation through capacity 
building, financial reporting, financial management policies development and 
support of oversight structures/bodies

SUB-PROGRAMMES
• Financial Management
• Supply Chain Management
• Information and Communications Technology
• Revenue Management
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED TARGETS AND ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENTS

PROGRAMME / SUB-PROGRAMME 3: FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

Performance 
Indicator

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
Actual 

Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

Comment on 
deviations

Number of in-
year monitoring 
reports  

12 In-year 
monitoring 
reports  

12 In-year 
monitoring 
reports  

12 In-year 
monitoring 
reports  

No deviation None

% of budget 
spend

Break even 
(94.3% budget 
spent)

Break even 
(100% budget 
management)

Break even ( 
93% budget 
management)

7% unspent
Delay in finalizing 
the infrastructure 
projects 

Number of SCM 
statutory reports 
produced

Not measured 
12 statutory SCM 
performance 
reports produced  

12 statutory SCM 
performance 
reports produced  

No deviation None

Number of assets 
verification 
reports produced

Not measured 
Two(2) assets 
verification 
reports produced

Two(2) assets 
verification 
reports produced

No deviation None

Number of 
business 
continuity report 
produced

Not measured 
Four (4) business 
continuity report 
produced

Four (4) business 
continuity report 
produced

No deviation None

Number of  
Information 
security 
management 
reports produced

Not measured 

Four (4) 
Information 
security 
management 
reports produced

Four (4) 
Information 
security 
management 
reports produced

No deviation None

PROGRAMME’S CONTRIBUTION 
• Re – streamlining of SCM processes to ensure compliance and segregation of duties.
• Updated SCM Policies, 
• Enhanced Financial System by introduction of an Advanced SCM Module eliminates manual requisitions.
• Conducted assets verification to ensure that assets register is complete and accurate,

STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER PERFORMANCE
• To revise the current Financial Management structure to ensure that the Division is well capacitated and 

segregation of duties maintained.
• To ensure the enforcement of consequences management on non-compliance, by reporting all unwanted 

expenditures monthly to ensure that corrective measures taken timeously to avoid recurrance thereof

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS
None
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R R R R R R

Financial 
Management 33 344 604 32 846 681 497 923 23,361,326 22,816,267 545,059

Supply Chain 
Management - - - 1,184,238 1,111,098 73,140

Information and 
Communications 
Technology

- - - 525,000 354,106 170,894

Employee Cost 8 245 415 7 282 402 963 013 7,829,340 7,309,234 520,106

Capex 165 000 118 835 46 165 165,000 26,998 138,002

Total 41 755 019 40 247 917 1 507 102 33,064,904 31,617,703 1,447,201
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4.4. PROGRAMME 4: LIMPOPO WILDLIFE RESORTS

PURPOSE
The purpose of this programme is to develop, manage and promote tourism 
and hospitality products within Provincial Nature Reserves, designated 
establishments and implement reserve infrastructure projects.  

The programme also liaises, supports and forms partnerships with private 
institutions and communities owning nature reserves.

SUB-PROGRAMMES
• Business Development
• Reserve Infrastructure Project 
• LWR Sales and Marketing
• Business Operations
• Community Partnerships

Mr Fixon Hlungwani 
Executive Director 

Commercial Operations
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS PLANNED 
TARGETS AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

PROGRAMME NAME: LIMPOPO WILDLIFE RESORTS

Strategic 
objectives

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
Actual 

Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

Comment on 
deviations

LWR Business 
improved 
through product 
development 
and reserve 
infrastructure 
upgrade

Not measured
One (1) 
tourism activity 
rehabilitated

Rehabilitation of 
one (1) tourism 
trail completed 
(Lekgalameetse)

No deviations None

Not measured
One (1) expansion 
programme 
developed

Construction 
of grid gates 
between Entabeni 
and Doorndraai 
was completed 

Grid gates was 
faulty and had to 
be corrected 

None

Development 
of infrastructure 
started in three 
reserves

Three (3) 
infrastructure 
projects 
upgraded

Three (3) 
infrastructure 
projects 
upgraded 
(Mphephu 
bridge, Acacia 
water,  Mphephu 
laundry)

No deviations None

Number of 
community 
partnership 
empowerment 
project concluded

Established and 
maintained  
strategic 
partnerships

Twelve (12) 
community 
partnership 
empowerment 
projects 
concluded

Twelve (12) 
Community 
Partnership 
empowerment 
projects 
concluded
(EPWP Projects 
in: Thabina, 
Lekgalameetse 
and Doorndraai 
and Permit 
operation in 
Doorndraai, 
Hans Merensky, 
Tzaneen Dam, 
Ma’nombe, 
Modjadji, 
Witvinger, 
Blouberg and 
Letaba/ Makuya)\

No deviations None
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED TARGETS AND ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENTS

PROGRAMME / SUB-PROGRAMME 4: LIMPOPO WILDLIFE RESORTS

Performance 
Indicator

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
Actual 

Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2015/2016

Comment on 
deviations

Number of 
tourism activities 
rehabilitated

Not measured
One (1) 
tourism activity 
rehabilitated

One (1) tourism 
trail rehabilitated 
at Lekgalameetse

No deviations None

Number of 
expansion 
projects 
developed

Service provider 
appointed and 
site hand over 
completed for 
Greater Entabeni 
expansion project 
(Infrastructure)
Implementation 
planning stage 
started at Mokolo

One (1) expansion 
project developed

One (1) 
expansion project 
developed: 
Construction 
of grid gates 
between Entabeni 
and Doorndraai 
was completed 

Grid gates was 
faulty and had to 
be corrected 

The grid gate will 
be reconstructed 
in the next 
quarter

Number of 
infrastructure 
upgrades

Five (5) projects 
started
Doorndraai, 
Mphephu 
Resort bridge, 
Lekgalameetse, 
Schuinsdraai and 
Acacia

Three (3) 
infrastructure 
projects 
upgraded

Three (3) 
infrastructure 
projects 
upgraded. 
(Mphephu bridge, 
Mphephu laundry 
& Acacia water)

No deviations None

Number of 
community 
partnership 
empowerment 
projects 
concluded

Maintained  (11) 
community  
partnerships
(Rust de Winter, 
Makuya, 
Nwanedi, Letaba, 
Lekgalameetse, 
Masebe, 
Mphephu, 
Modjadji, 
Man’ombe, 
Thabina and 
Wonderkop)

Twelve (12) 
community 
partnership 
empowerment 
projects 
concluded

Twelve (12) 
Community 
Partnership 
empowerment 
projects 
concluded
(EPWP projects 
in Thabina, 
Lekgalameetse 
and Doorndraai 
and Permit 
Programme in 
Hans-Merensky, 
Man’ombe, 
Modjajdi, Tzaneen 
Dam, Blouberg, 
Witvinger, 
Doorndraai and 
Letaba/Makuya) 

No deviations None
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THE PROGRAMME CONTRIBUTED THE FOLLOWING:  
• Upgraded and improved infrastructure condition. 
• Improved the relationship with the  communities and empowered twelve communities through EPWP
• Contributed on the provincial revenue fund.

STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER PERFORMANCE
The grid gate will be reconstructed in the next quarter 

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS
Other activities where conducted to contribute to the following:
Registered 140 443 tourist arrivals to the resorts were 90% from Limpopo and 8% from Gauteng while 2% was 
from other provinces with Mphephu Resort being the preferred Resort.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure
Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R R R R R R

Business 
Development - - - - - -

Facilities 
Management - - - - - -

Sales and 
Marketing - - - 1,045,000 893,140 151,860

Business 
Operations 10,674,147 8,293,318 6,288,993 3,570,062 2,718,931

Community 
Partnerships - - - - 25,719 (25,719)

Employee Cost 26,953,184 24,135,233 2,817,951 23,798,592 22,660,712 1,137,880

Capex - - - 200,000 - 200,000

Infrastructure-
Operating Cost 7,891,165 7,004,148 887,017 26,543,721 14,461,722 12,081,999

Infrastructure – 
Capex  49,461,888 47, 006,275 2,455,613 46,656,279 48,324,705 (1,668,426)

Total 94,980,384 86 438 975 8,541,409 104,532,585 89,936,060 14,596,525
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4.5. PROGRAMME 5: TOURISM AND MARKETING

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

PROGRAMME NAME

Strategic 
objectives

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual 
Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment 
on 

deviations

Conducted 
marketing 
activities to 
increase tourist
arrivals

Increased tourist 
arrivals through 
the marketing 
activities in 
various domestic 
and international 
exhibitions, 
shows, events and 
workshops.

Participated in 
one (01) trade 
marketing
activities

Participated in 
one (01) trade 
marketing activity 
: INDABA 2015 
Trade Show, 
Durban ICC

No deviations None

Supported and
Mentored tourism
entrepreneurs to 
gain market
access

Provided 
marketing 
research reports, 
attended to 
enquiries, 
complaints and 
compliments, 
distributed 
tourism 
information 
through Provincial 
regional 
information 
offices

Ten (10) tourism
entrepreneurs
supported to gain
market access

Ten (10) tourism 
entrepreneurs 
supported  to 
gain market 
access at INDABA 
2015 Trade Show

No deviations None

Tourism 
marketing
Research and
Information 
provided

Provided three 
(03)
marketing 
intelligence
reports

Five (05)
Marketing
research reports
produced

Five (05) 
Marketing 
research reports 
produced
Four quarterly  
occupancy report 
and one (1) 
Annual report

No deviations None

Ms. Lulama Tshabalala 
Executive Tourism 

and Marketing

PURPOSE
The purpose of the programme is to provide generic marketing domestically 
and internationally. This was done by positioning  Limpopo Province as the 
leading destination in Southern Africa through branding, trade marketing, 
providing marketing access and support to tourism Small medium micro 
enterprises (SMMEs),information dissemination, market research, tourism 
safety and customer relations management.

SUB-PROGRAMMES
• Marketing Services
• Information Services and Research

Strategic objectives, performance indicators planned targets and actual 
achievements



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED TARGETS AND ACTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENTS

PROGRAMME / SUB-PROGRAMME 5: TOURISM AND MARKETING

Performance 
Indicator

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment 
on 

deviations

Number 
of trade 
marketing 
activities

Activated seven 
(7) Marketing 
activities.
•Participated at 
INDABA Trade 
Show
•Conducted 
Speed Marketing
•Conducted  Golf 
Extravaganza
•Participated at  
IGTM
•Participated at 
Indonesia Tourism 
roundtable 
Mission
•Participated at 
ITB
Conducted 
INDABA BRIEFING 
session

Participated in 
Four (04) trade 
marketing
activities

Participated in one (01) 
trade marketing activity 
: INDABA 2015 Trade 
Show, Durban ICC

No deviations None

Number 
of tourism 
entrepreneurs 
supported to 
gain market 
access

Supported 
Eighteen(18) 
Tourism 
entrepreneurs  
to gain market 
access

•Supported  Eight 
(8) SMMEs to 
attended INDABA 
2014 

•Supported Three 
(3) entrepreneurs 
to for the ETEYA 
programme
Supported Seven 
(7) SMME’s  for 
the  Book a 
Guest House 
programme in 
partnership with 
Tsogo Sun

Ten (10) tourism
entrepreneurs
supported and
mentored to gain
market access

Ten (10) tourism 
entrepreneurs 
supported  to gain 
market access at 
INDABA 2015 Trade 
Show

No deviations None
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Performance 
Indicator

Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015

Planned Target
2015/2016

Actual Achievement
2015/2016

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2015/2016

Comment 
on 

deviations

Number of
marketing 
research
reports 
produced

Produced four 
(4) marketing 
intelligence 
reports i.e.
Two (02) Visitor 
book analysis 
reports
One (1)  portfolio 
of market analysis 
report
One (01) 
Oppikoppi 
research report

Five (05) 
Marketing
research reports
produced

Five (05) Marketing 
research reports 
produced
(Four quarterly  
occupancy report and 
one (1) Annual report)

No deviations None

THE PROGRAMME CONTRIBUTED THE FOLLOWING:  
LTA’s tourism entrepreneurs program has assisted 18 Tourism entrepreneurs to gain access to marketing platforms

STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER PERFORMANCE
 
CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS
No changes to planned targets

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure
Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R R R R R R

Marketing 
Services 3,069,200 2,041,107 1,028,093 1,738,400 3,126,079 (1,387,679)

Information 
Services and 
Research

- - - 240,000 173,955 66,045

Transformation 
and Capacity 
building

- - - 215,000 147,250 67,750

Divisional 
Support - - - 230,000 179,456 50,544

Employee Cost 9,717,331 9,508,662 208,669 10,378,106 10,208,027 170,079

Capex 150,000 113,833 36,167 180,042 13,900 166,142

Total 12,936,531 11,663,602 1,272,929 12,981,548 13,848,667 (867,119)
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UNDER COLLECTION OF REVENUE IS MAINLY DUE TO THE FOLLOWING:
• Dilapidating resort infrastructure 
• Closure of D’Nyala and Acacia Park due to flood and fire.

MEASURE TAKEN TO ENSURE THAT TARGET IS MET
• Improvement of conditions in the resorts
• Review of the contracts of the permit holders

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sources of 
revenue Budget

Actual 
Amount 
Collected

Over/
(Under) 

Collection
Estimate

Actual 
Amount 
Collected

Over/(Under) 
Collection

R R R R R R

LWR – Resorts 0 8,576,730 (8,576,730) 14,300,000 7,755,029 (6,544,971)

Interest Income 0 958,014 (958,014) - 1,151,797 1,157,797

Other non-tax 
revenue 0 637,641 (637,641) - 755,529 755, 529

Total 10,172,385 10,172,385 14,300,000 9,662,355 (4,631,645)

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION
5.1 REVENUE COLLECTION
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2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure
Budget

Actual
Expenditure (Over)/Under 

Expenditure

R R R R R R

Personnel Costs 57,296,936 53,235,697 4,061,239 56, 445,186 52,768,108 3,677,078

Goods and 
Services 48,350,351 43,985,941 4,364,410 35,932,772 33,335,186 2,597,586

Board Expenses 2,687,640 2,535,927 151,713 2,200,000 2,100,888 99,112

Infrastructure 
Operating 
Expenses

7,891,165 7,004,148 887,017 26,543,721 14,461,722 12,081,999

Capital 
Expenditure 1,323,020 760,497 562,523 595,042 69,938 525,104

Capital 
Expenditure-
Infrastructure

49,461,888 47,006,275 2,455,613 46,656,279 48,324,705 (1,668,426)

Total 167,011,000 154,528,485 12,482,515 168,373,000 151,060,547 17,312,453

5.2 PROGRAMME EXPENDITURE

5.3. CAPITAL INVESTMENT, MAINTENANCE AND ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN

Infrastructure projects which have been completed in the current year:
• Mphephu bridge construction  is at 98% completion 
• Mphephu laundry upgrade 
• Acacia – upgrade of water reticulation and bore hole 

The progress in comparison to what was planned at the beginning of the year:
• Doorndraai – upgrading of recreational facilities (ablution, caravan sites, water, roads and electricity supply at 

Sering, Acacia and Boukenhout camps) is at 80% completion  to be completed by June 2016
• Letaba Ranch – Construction of pickets, upgrading of ablution facilities and water supply. Project is at 80% and 

to be completed by June 2016.
• Rust De Winter – Construction of water purification plant. Project to be completed in May 2016.

Infrastructure projects that are currently in progress (list projects) and when are they expected to be 
completed:
• Doorndraai – upgrading of recreational facilities (ablution, caravan sites, water, roads and electricity supply at 

Sering, Acacia and Boukenhout camps) is at 70% completion  to be completed by June 2016
• Letaba Ranch – Construction of pickets, upgrading of ablution facilities and water supply. Project to be 

completed by June 2016.
• Rust De Winter – Construction of water purification plant. Project to be completed in April 2016.
Plans to close down or down-grade any current facilities:
• Shonalanga Resort was closed down due to expiry of the lease agreement on the 1st April 2016
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• D’Nyala Game Lodge was closed from the 1st of April 2016 due to the implementation of poverty relieve 
infrastructure programme of Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA)

Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review:
• Replacement of borehole at Acacia
• Installed water reticulation plant at RDW

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure
Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R R R R R R

Total 65,716,000 57,353,053 10,413,573 50,000,000 20,450,840 29,549,160

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS BY SUB-PROGRAMME

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub- Programme 
Name Budget Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure
Budget Actual

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R R R R R R

CEO 10,041,893 9,020,293 1,021,600 9, 709, 008 7, 943, 991 1, 765,017

HR 7,297,173 7,157,697 139,476 8 ,084, 955 7, 714,126 370,829

FSS 41,755,019 40,247,917 1,507,102 33, 064, 904 31, 617,703 1, 447,201

LWR 94,980,384 86,438,975 8,541,409 104, 532, 585 89,936,060 14,596,525

TOURISM 12,936,531 11,663,602 1,272,929 12, 981, 548 13, 848, 667 (867 119)

Total 167,011,000 154,528,485 12,482,515 168,373,000 151,060,547 17,312,453
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GOVERNANCE
PART C

INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by 
which public entities are directed, controlled and held to 
account. In addition to legislative requirements based on 
a public entity’s enabling legislation, the Limpopo Tourism 
Agency Act, corporate governance with regard to public 
entity is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the 
principles contained in the King’s Report.



The Executive and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate governance.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE 
The entity appeared once at the Portfolio Committee during the year under review.

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
Four quarterly reports were submitted to the Executive Authority on the following dates:

• First quarter on the 31st  July 2015
• Second quarter on the 30th October 2015
• Third quarter on the 29th January 2016
• Fourth quarter on the 29th April 2016

The Executive Authority requested LTA to give specific attention to the following:

• A detailed report as referred to in the review on the implementation and outcome of the provincial Tourism 
Marketing strategy.

• Progress made to date on the Financial Turnaround strategy.
• A detailed report as referred to in the review of Marula Festival.

4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
Introduction

The Board continues to give direction to management and 
executes its fiduciary duties.

The role of the Board is as follows:

Oversees that the Agency:

(a) Develop and implement a tourism marketing strategy 
within the framework of the provincial tourism strategies;

(b) Undertake and facilitate tourism research;

(c) Support tourism transformation and capacity building 
programmes;

(d) Enhance and enable tourism investment 
opportunities on provincial nature reserves;

(e) Enhance the integration of tourism programmes 
through the establishment of formal partnerships with 
municipalities;

(f) Initiate tourism product development in provincial 
nature reserves;

(g) Provide hospitality services in provincial nature 
reserves;

(h) Subject to the PFMA and other applicable legislation, 
establish strategic partnerships with community 
co-operatives, organisations, government structures and 
tourism organisations for enhancing tourism marketing;

(i) Existing tourist attractions, infrastructure, facilities, 
services, location and access;

(ii) Natural and cultural attractions that may be developed 
as tourist attractions in the province; and

(iii) New areas of tourism activity and potential sites for 
these activities;

(j) Advise the MEC on any matter relating to the tourism 
industry; and

(k) Perform any other function the MEC may assign or 
delegate to the Agency.

Board Charter

The Board Charter is in place and the Board’s activities find 
meaning from the Charter.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

Name
Designation (in terms of 
the Public Entity Board 
structure)

Date appointed
Date 
resigned/ 
Terminated

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board
Directorships (List the entities) Other Committees (e.g: Audit committee) No. of Meetings 

attended

Khiba Andrew Dipela Chairperson 01 May 2015

• Courses passed: 
• Private 1 &2
• Constitutional Law
• African Law
• English 1
• Criminal Law
• Interpretation of Statutes
• Family Law
• Afrikaans
• Political Science 1 &2
• Professional Sport Management Graduate 

Module
• Executive Sports Management Programme
• FIFA Futuro 3 Graduate

• Sports 
• Human Resources

• Trustee of Bokamoso Investment Trust
• Revolutionary Road Solutions
• Rotakuwa Gaming and Leisure
• Chairperson of Dipela Sports Events

32

Mabokela Moses Chikane

Deputy Chairperson 
and Chairperson: 
Tourism, Marketing and 
Communications 

01 May 2015
• Advanced Diploma in Economic Policy
• Diploma in Economics and Public Finance
• B Com Honours in Economics

• International Relations and 
Governance • Human Resources and Remunerations 32

Annemie de Klerk Member 01 May 2015

• BSC Botany and Zoology
• Higher Education Diploma
• BSC Honours in Botany
• MSC Faculty of Natural and Agricultural 

Sciences Honorary Colours (Theme of Thesis: 
The Waterberg Biosphere Reserve)

• PhD 

• Nature Conservation 
Scientist 

• Environmental 
management

• Indusbel Cc • Ethics and Governance
• Finance and Procurement 24

Kgoshi Seshego 
Sekgalabjana Solly 
Sekororo

Chairperson: Ethics and 
Governance 01 May 2015 • Traditional Leader

• CPMD In Financial Management • Traditional authorities • Limpopo Wildlife Resorts 20

Kgoshigadi Maponye 
Nchabeleng

Chairperson: Human 
Resources and 
Remunerations

01 May 2015

• Traditional Leader
• B Proc  Degree (not completed)
• CPMD In Financial Management • Traditional authorities • Shibu Business Enteprise • Tourism, Marketing and 

Communications 21 

Hlaume Orginia Mafefe Member 01 May 2015
• BA Degree
• BED Degree
• MED Degree 

• Local Government • Councillor • Councilor 22

Papi Petrus Motene Member 01 May 2015

• Diploma in Local Government Management
• Certificate in Leadership Development
• Certificate in Emerging Management 

Development
• Introduction to Business Computing
• Financial Management Course

• Financial
• Santete Trading
• Sesinjemi Projects

• Finance and Procurement
• Ethics and Governance 30

Mantsho Owen Phasha Chairperson: Finance and 
Procurement 01 May 2015

• Certificate in Property Management and 
Administration

• Bachelor Arts, Politics and Literature
• Governance • Mamolapong Trading Projects • Tourism, Marketing and 

Communications 35

Tirhani Ezekiela Mabunda Member 01 May 2015

• Diploma in Public Administration
• BA
• Higher Education Diploma
• Honours in Business Administration
• Diploma in Auctioneering
• Accredited Auctioneer Real Estate
• Benefit Auction Specialist
• Chartered Institute Auctioneer
• Chartered Practioneer in Real Estate
• Currently studying PhD in Management of 

Technology and Information with Da Vinci 
Institute

• Entrepreneurship

• Plus 94 Research
• Tirhani Auctioneers
• Afrin Wildlife Solutions
• African Training Academy and School 

of Auctioneering
• On Board Travel
• Fhufhani Aviation

• Human Resources and Remunerations
• Finance and Procurement 21
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

Name
Designation (in terms of 
the Public Entity Board 
structure)

Date appointed
Date 
resigned/ 
Terminated

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board
Directorships (List the entities) Other Committees (e.g: Audit committee) No. of Meetings 

attended
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• Rotakuwa Gaming and Leisure
• Chairperson of Dipela Sports Events

32

Mabokela Moses Chikane

Deputy Chairperson 
and Chairperson: 
Tourism, Marketing and 
Communications 

01 May 2015
• Advanced Diploma in Economic Policy
• Diploma in Economics and Public Finance
• B Com Honours in Economics

• International Relations and 
Governance • Human Resources and Remunerations 32

Annemie de Klerk Member 01 May 2015

• BSC Botany and Zoology
• Higher Education Diploma
• BSC Honours in Botany
• MSC Faculty of Natural and Agricultural 

Sciences Honorary Colours (Theme of Thesis: 
The Waterberg Biosphere Reserve)

• PhD 

• Nature Conservation 
Scientist 

• Environmental 
management

• Indusbel Cc • Ethics and Governance
• Finance and Procurement 24

Kgoshi Seshego 
Sekgalabjana Solly 
Sekororo

Chairperson: Ethics and 
Governance 01 May 2015 • Traditional Leader

• CPMD In Financial Management • Traditional authorities • Limpopo Wildlife Resorts 20

Kgoshigadi Maponye 
Nchabeleng

Chairperson: Human 
Resources and 
Remunerations

01 May 2015

• Traditional Leader
• B Proc  Degree (not completed)
• CPMD In Financial Management • Traditional authorities • Shibu Business Enteprise • Tourism, Marketing and 

Communications 21 

Hlaume Orginia Mafefe Member 01 May 2015
• BA Degree
• BED Degree
• MED Degree 

• Local Government • Councillor • Councilor 22

Papi Petrus Motene Member 01 May 2015

• Diploma in Local Government Management
• Certificate in Leadership Development
• Certificate in Emerging Management 

Development
• Introduction to Business Computing
• Financial Management Course

• Financial
• Santete Trading
• Sesinjemi Projects

• Finance and Procurement
• Ethics and Governance 30

Mantsho Owen Phasha Chairperson: Finance and 
Procurement 01 May 2015

• Certificate in Property Management and 
Administration

• Bachelor Arts, Politics and Literature
• Governance • Mamolapong Trading Projects • Tourism, Marketing and 

Communications 35

Tirhani Ezekiela Mabunda Member 01 May 2015

• Diploma in Public Administration
• BA
• Higher Education Diploma
• Honours in Business Administration
• Diploma in Auctioneering
• Accredited Auctioneer Real Estate
• Benefit Auction Specialist
• Chartered Institute Auctioneer
• Chartered Practioneer in Real Estate
• Currently studying PhD in Management of 

Technology and Information with Da Vinci 
Institute

• Entrepreneurship

• Plus 94 Research
• Tirhani Auctioneers
• Afrin Wildlife Solutions
• African Training Academy and School 

of Auctioneering
• On Board Travel
• Fhufhani Aviation

• Human Resources and Remunerations
• Finance and Procurement 21
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

Name
Designation (in terms of 
the Public Entity Board 
structure)

Date appointed
Date 
resigned/ 
Terminated

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board
Directorships (List the entities) Other Committees (e.g: Audit committee) No. of Meetings 

attended

Mathukana Mokoka Chairperson: Risk and Audit 01 May 2015 • Chartered Accountant (CA) SA   • Audit, Risk and Financial 
Management

• Autopax Passenger Services Member
• National Lotteries Commission • Limpopo Wildlife Resorts 15

Thidziambi Gladys 
Nethengwe

Chairperson: Limpopo 
Wildlife Resorts 01 May 2015

• BA Degree
• BA Honours
• Masters  Degree: Female Linguistic Etiquette 

with reference to a Muvenda
• PhD: Chieftainship in Venda: A case of 

Tshivenda Lore

• Education, Traditional 
authorities • Kara Heritage • Ethics and Governancens 22

Khumbudzo Phophi Silence 
Ntshavheni Member 01 May 2015

• BA in Political Science
• BA Honours in Development Studies
• BA Honours in Labour Relations
• Master in Business Administration

• Political, Entrepreurship
• Managing Director: Phore Farms
• Bokamoso Ba Rena Investment Trust

• Limpopo Wildlife Resorts
• Human Resources and Remunerations 11



COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

Name
Designation (in terms of 
the Public Entity Board 
structure)

Date appointed
Date 
resigned/ 
Terminated

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board
Directorships (List the entities) Other Committees (e.g: Audit committee) No. of Meetings 

attended
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Chairperson: Limpopo 
Wildlife Resorts 01 May 2015

• BA Degree
• BA Honours
• Masters  Degree: Female Linguistic Etiquette 

with reference to a Muvenda
• PhD: Chieftainship in Venda: A case of 

Tshivenda Lore

• Education, Traditional 
authorities • Kara Heritage • Ethics and Governancens 22

Khumbudzo Phophi Silence 
Ntshavheni Member 01 May 2015

• BA in Political Science
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BOARD COMMITTEES 
Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Names of Members

Board 12 12 KA Dipela
Ambassador MM Chikane
Dr A De Klerk
Dr TG Nethengwe
Kgoshi SSS Sekororo
TE Mabunda
MO Phasha
PP Motene
Cllr HO Mafefe
Kgoshigadi M Nchabeleng
M Mokoka
KPS Ntshavheni 

Risk and Audit 4 4 M Mokoka
Cllr HO Mafefe
Y.M Mathabatha
M.P Mongalo

Joint Risk and Audit and 
Finance and 
Procurement

5 8 M Mokoka
Cllr HO Mafefe 
Y.M Mathabatha
M.P Mongalo
MO Phasha 
TE Mabunda
PP Motene
Dr A De Klerk

Ethics and 
Governance

4 4 Kgoshi SSS Sekororo
Dr. A De Klerk
PP Motene
Dr TG Nethengwe

Finance and 
Procurement 

5 4 MO Phasha 
TE Mabunda
PP Motene
Dr A De Klerk

Human Resources and 
Remunerations

5 4 Kgoshigadi M Nchabeleng
Ambassador MM Chikane
TE Mabunda
KPS Ntshavheni

Tourism, Marketing 
and Communications 

9 4 Ambassador MM Chikane
Kgoshigadi Nchabeleng
HO Phasha
Cllr HO  Mafefe

Limpopo Wildlife Resorts 4 4 Dr TG Nethengwe
KPS Ntshavheni 
M Mokoka
Kgoshi SSS Sekororo

Joint Human Resources and 
Remunerations and 
Limpopo Wildlife Resorts

1 8 Dr TG Nethengwe
KPS Ntshavheni (X2)
M Mokoka
Kgoshi SSS Sekororo
Kgoshigadi M Nchabeleng
Ambassador MM Chikane
TE Mabunda

Remuneration of Board Members, see note 16 on Annual Financial Statements.



5. RISK MANAGEMENT
LTA has adopted the Provincial Risk Management Framework in its approach to enterprise risk management. The entity 
has a risk management strategy in place which it is implementing.

Risks are identified through a risk assessment session held on an annual basis. The entity considers reports by internal 
audit and external audit, incidents reports and investigations reports to inform the risk identification process. The entity 
prioritises top ten (10) risks annually and allocates resources in order to manage them. The entity’s strategy is to reduce 
the impact of high level risks on its operations in order to realise the mandate, where possible, risks are transferred 
or avoided.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

Although the Internal Control Unit was not established by the entity, however, the activities thereof were done by 
the Internal Auditors co-ordinated by the Risk & Compliance Unit. Please request the CFO to provide progress on the 
establishment of the Internal Control Unit.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND RISK & AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Internal Audit work includes:

• Reviewing and concluding on the reliability and integrity of financial and operating information and the means 
used to identify, measure, classify and report such information:

• Reviewing and concluding on the systems established by management to ensure compliance with those policies, 
plans, procedures, laws and regulations which could have a significant impact on operations and reports, and 
determining whether the Limpopo Tourism Agency is in compliance;

• Reviewing and concluding on the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence of 
assets.

• Reviewing and concluding on operations of programmes to ascertain whether results are consistent with 
established objectives and goals and whether the operations or programmes are being carried out as planned.

Audit work done:

• Performance information management review
• Supply Chain Management review
• Follow up audits
• HR review
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

Name Qualifications Internal or 
external

If internal, position in the 
public entity

Date 
appointed

Date 
Resigned

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mathukana  Mokoka Chartered Accountant 
(CA) SA   

Internal • Autopax Passenger 
Services Member

• National Lotteries Board 
Member

21 May 2015 8

Hlaume Orginia 
Mafefe

• PhD Student
• Masters: 

Management 

Internal • Council Member 21 May 2015 7

Yvone Stephina 
Mmadikgomo 
Mathabatha

• M.Com South 
African and 
international 
Taxation

• CPMD 

Internal • Board Member: 
Sekhukhune Development 
Agency

• Council Member: 
Waterberg TVET 

01 Nov 2008 9

Makgoba Percy 
Mongalo

• Diploma in Public 
Finance and 
Auditing 

• B.Com Accounting 
• B.Com Hons 

Accounting
• Master of Business 

Administration

Internal • National Skills Authority
• Limpopo Legislature Audit 

Committee Member
• Molemole Municipality 
• Lepelle Nkumpi 

Municipality  Audit 
Committee

• Polokwane Municipality 
Audit Committee Member

• Capricorn TVET Audit 
Committee Member

• Limpopo Human Resource 
Development Council 
Member

01 Nov 2008 8
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8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The founding legislation of the entity is the Limpopo Tourism Act 2/2009. The objectives of the entity are well 
articulated is section 2 of the Act.

Section 6 (k) provides in a nutshell that the MEC may from time to time delegate a function to the entity to execute.

During the period under review, the MEC had given a directive for the Limpopo Wildlife Resorts to be transferred to the 
department. The process is unfolding. 
It is necessary at this juncture to mention the challenges besetting the management of the Makuya Nature Reserve by 
LTA. 

The authorities have on some occasion advocated for the establishment of Parks Board as a separate entity. There is 
no clear directive in this regard and the entity will be supportive of every effort by the authorities that will serve to 
heighten and intensify this mandate.

9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

LTA has developed a fraud prevention plan, which is currently being implemented. The plan has three (3) key areas 
designed to eliminate fraud and corruption within LTA’s operations. These areas focus on prevention, detection and 
correction.

LTA has furthermore complemented the plan in so far as detection of fraud and corruption is concerned by developing 
and implementing a whistleblowing policy. The policy sets out the channels and mechanisms on which to report fraud 
and corruption without fear of reprisals. The policy guarantees protection to all stakeholders raising genuine concerns 
regarding fraud and corruption.

All cases reported are investigated and where wrong doing is found to have occurred, corrective action is taken 
immediately.

10. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The LTA policies require that all employees, including those charged with Supply Chain Management, disclose all 
their interest. Where potential for conflict is identified, LTA recuses the employee concerned from discharging any 
responsibility that would give rise to such conflict of interest.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The LTA Code of Conduct has been formulated in order to foster and maintain trust of the employees of the entity. 
The LTA Code of Conduct ensures that all employees adhere to appropriate standards of conduct in order to maintain 
and enhance the reputation of LTA. The entity has disciplinary rules that establish the acceptable standard of conduct 
required from employees. It addresses specific consequences an employee may face in contravening the policy.
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11. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Although health and safety are valued in every facet of operations, the term health and safety relates primarily to 
occupational health safety and environmental concerns. Workplace Safety is not only employees whose health is at 
stake, but also employers who seek to both maintain a productive health force and avoid penalties or legal liability as 
well as the public at large which can be affected by environmental fall-out from major workplace incidents.

12. COMPANY SECRETARY

• Guides the Board collectively, and each director individually, as to their duties and responsibilities and make them 
aware of all legislation and regulations relevant to this entity.

• Ensures proper induction and orientation of directors, including assessing the specific training needs of directors 
and executive management in regard to their fiduciary and other responsibilities.

• Is always available to provide comprehensive practical support and guidance to directors, with emphasis on 
supporting the non-executive directors and chairperson.

• Ensures unhindered access to information by all board and committee members that they can contribute to board 
meetings and other discussions.

• Compiles the board papers and for paginates them to ensure compliance with the required standards of good 
governance.

• Raises all matters that warrant the attention by the board.
• Ensures compliance with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements, having due regard for the specific 

business interest of the company.
• Also assist carrying out corporate strategies by ensuring that the board’s decisions and instructions are clearly 

communicated to the relevant persons.

13. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

LTA annually identifies On 18 July 2015, Limpopo Tourism Agency (LTA) robed in Polokwane City Football Club and 
NMC Katekile Construction as donors to the LTA’s initiative of Nelson Mandela Day activity that took place at Polokwane 
Place of Safety. The work at the centre in the main, involved giving away toys to children and also motivating the 
inmates. Players of Polokwane City also interacted with the children and distributed presents to them. LTA staff 
members donated clothes and toys to the centre. 

The project was used as a public relations programme for Limpopo Tourism Agency to contribute meaningfully to other 
people who are less fortunate in life thereby improving their lives for the better. 

LTA has already held several similar events in the past including adopting Bana Ba Thari Special School for the 
Intellectually Challenged, CSI programme at Grace Of Hope Special School for the intellectually Challenged, Bosele 
Special School for the Deaf and Blind, donated blankets to Mohaung Hospice Centre in Makweng, donated vegetables 
and Blankets to Sello Sa Batho Day Care Centre in Seshego. It was envisaged that 30 members of LTA staff would be in 
attendance on the day.
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14. RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

During the current financial year, four (4) Risk and Audit Committee meetings were held and five (5) Joint Special Risk 
and Audit and Finance and Procurement Committee meetings. The attendance details during the 2015/2016 financial 
year were as follows:

Risk and Audit Committee responsibilities

The Risk and Audit Committee reports that it has 
performed its responsibilities arising from sections 51(1)(a)
(ii) and 76(4)(d) of the PFMA and Regulation 27.1 (of the 
Treasury Regulations).

The Risk and Audit Committee also reports that it has 
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its 
Charter. The Committee has regulated its affairs in 
compliance with this charter and has discharged all its 
responsibilities as contained therein.

Effectiveness of internal controls 
procedures

The system of internal controls is designed to provide 
cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded with 
liabilities and working capital efficiently managed.  It 
can be confirmed that the system of internal control 
and risk management applied by the Limpopo Tourism 
Agency during the financial year is effective, efficient and 
transparent.

The provisions of the following instruments have assisted 
the entity in the internal control unit: PFMA 1/1999 (as 
amended), King III report as well as Corporate Governance 
requirements. The risk management is a continuous 
process and action plans and mitigatigations are in place 
to respond to the hindrances in achieving the goal the 
entity has for itself.  

Management has been instructed to have the audit action 
plan, which is in the form of a turn-around strategy to 
ensure that the deficiencies and shortcomings identified 
during the Audit are addressed.  The Risk and Audit 

Name Designation No. of Meetings attended Date appointed Date Resigned

Mr. M. Mokoka Chairperson 8 01 May 2015

Cllr. HO Mafefe Committee member 7 01 May 2015

Ms. YM Mathabatha Committee member 9 01 Nov 2008

Mr PM Mongalo Committee member 8 01 Nov 2008

Committee will continue to oversee and monitor the 
implementation of progress in this regard.  

Compliance with prescripts with regard to timely 
payments of creditors can only be accomplished if the 
budget and monthly transfers are adjusted to realistic 
levels.  Apart from these matters, we can report that the 
system of internal control for the period under review was 
in general, effective and efficient.

Internal Audit

Much can be achieved if the work of the Internal audit 
function is improved.  The strategic internal audit plan is 
based on key areas of risk identified and the internal audit, 
thereby giving effect to the risk based approach.

The quality of in-year management and monthly/
quarterly reports submitted in terms of the Public 
Finance Management Act and the Limpopo Tourism 
Act

The Risk and Audit Committee is satisfied with the 
content and quality of the reports issued by Limpopo 
Tourism Agency during the year under review. The reports 
generated significant improvement from the previous 
financial years.

The quality of in-year management and monthly/
quarterly reports submitted in terms of the Public Finance 
Management Act and the Limpopo Tourism Act

The Risk and Audit Committee is satisfied with the 
content and quality of the reports issued by Limpopo 
Tourism Agency during the year under review. The reports 
generated indicate the significant improvement from the 
previous financial years.
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EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

The Risk and Audit Committee has:-

Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial 
statements to be included in the annual report with the 
Auditor General South Africa and the Accounting Officer;

Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;

Reviewed the Limpopo Tourism Agency’s compliance 
with legal and regulatory provisions; and Reviewed, the 
Auditor General of South Africa’s management report 
and management’s response thereto. The Committee has 
expressed satisfaction to the tabling of the report. 

We therefore concur and accept the Auditor General of 
South Africa’s report on the annual financial statements.

Integrity of the Annual Report

The Risk and Audit Committee is satisfied with the 
integrity of the Annual Report on the performance 
of the Agency.  The Risk and Audit Committee, with 
the assistance of the Internal Audit, will continue to 
monitor the processes and procedures in place to ensure 
improvement and consistency in the quality and integrity 
of performance information.  

Auditor General of South Africa

Conclusion

The shortcomings identified will continue to impact on 
the successful management of the Agency to achieve 
and meet its predetermined objectives and obtain an 
improved audit opinion.  Given the afore-mentioned, the 
Committee will continue to implore on the Board, Chief 
Executive Officer, Executive Management Committee and 
staff to continue to work tirelessly with dedication and 
support from this Committee to obtain an improved audit 
opinion.

On a personal note, as the Chairperson of the Risk and 
Audit, I wish to acknowledge the commitment, selflessness 
and dedication displayed by my colleagues in the Risk and 
Audit Committee, whilst acknowledging the cooperation 
from management and the Board.

____________________________
M MOKOKA 
RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON  
Limpopo Tourism Agency
Date: 31 March 2016
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HUMAN RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT

PART D



INTRODUCTION
For the period under review, the Human Resources Division 
facilitated the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer to 
spearhead the strategic direction of the entity. Six internship 
candidates were appointed for a period of twelve months in 
line with the Skills Development Act to gain practical work 
experience in the various fields within the entity and one 
intern resigned within one month of appointment. 

Four strategies for all HR programmes were implemented, namely:  

• Human Resources Management: maintained record management system and verified personnel documents.
• Human Resources Development: placed and monitored a number of six interns for a period of twelve months, 

effective from 16 June 2015.
• Employee Relations: consulted with staff on key Human Resources policies identified for review.
• Employee Wellness: Held health education and awareness programme to raise awareness particularly on cervical 

and prostate cancer, HIV/AIDS Campaigns to create awareness on the HIV/AIDS epidemic and promotion of healthy 
lifestyles among staff members, and held Men’s Health Talk to highlight issues related to men’s health.

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

PERSONNEL COST BY PROGRAMME

Programme Total Expenditure 
for the entity
 (R)

Personnel 
Expenditure 
(R)

Personnel exp. as a 
% of total  exp. 
(R)

No. of employees Average personnel 
cost per employee 
(R)

CEO’s Office  9 020 294  5 598 247 62% 8  699 781 

Human Resources  7 157 697  6 047 162 84% 19  318 272 

*(Provident Fund , 
Salary Admin, Leave 
Gratuity and  Stipend)

 -941 204  -4 877 

Finance and Support 
Services

 40 247 917  8 177 139 20% 17  481 008 

Limpopo Wildlife 
Resorts

 86 438 975  23 829 710 28% 129  184 726 

Tourism  11 663 602  9 476 143 81% 20  473 807 
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PERSONNEL COST BY SALARY BAND

Level Personnel Expenditure 
(R)

% of personnel exp. to 
total personnel cost 
(R)

No. of employees Average personnel cost 
per employee 
(R)

Top Management 804 844 2% 1 804 844

Senior Management 6 371 449 12% 5 1 274 290

Professional qualified 17 927 687 34% 21 853 699

Skilled 8 859 344 17% 27 328 124

Semi-skilled 15 377 704 29% 98 156 915

Unskilled 3 787 372 7% 41 92 375

*Provident Fund , Salary Admin, 
Leave Gratuity and  Stipend

-941 204 -2% -4 877

TOTAL 52 187 196 100% 193 270 400

PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Programme Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of performance rewards  to 
total personnel cost (R’000)

Top Management None None None

Senior Management None None None

Professional qualified None None None

Skilled None None None

Semi-skilled None None None

Unskilled None None None

TOTAL 00 00 00

TRAINING COSTS 

Directorate/ Business 
Unit

Personnel 
Expenditure 
(R)

Training 
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure as a % 
of Personnel Cost.

No. of 
employees 
trained

Avg training cost 
per employee

CEO’s Office  5 598 247  30 435 0.5% 3 10 145

Human Resources  6 047 162  5 990 0.1% 1 5 990

Finance and Support 
Services

 8 177 139  20 957 0.3% 3 6 986

Limpopo Wildlife 
Resorts

 23 829 710  0 0% 0 0

Tourism  9 476 143  1 000 0.0% 2 500
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EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

Programme 2014/2015
No. of Employees

2015/2016 
Approved Posts

2015/2016
No. of Employees

2015/2016
Vacancies

% of vacancies

Top Management 0 1 1 0 0%

Senior Management 6 7 5 2 29%

Professional qualified 23 32 21 11 34%

Skilled 25 41 27 14 34%

Semi-skilled 103 115 98 17 15%

Unskilled 43 54 41 13 24%

TOTAL 200 250 193 57 23%

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Salary Band Employment at 
beginning of period

*Appointments Terminations Employment at end of the period

Top Management 0 1 0 1

Senior Management 6 0 1 5

Professional qualified 23 0 2 21

Skilled 25 2 0 27

Semi-skilled 103 4 5 98

Unskilled 43 0 2 41

Total 200 7 10 193

Programme 2014/2015
No. of Employees

2015/2016 
Approved Posts

2015/2016
No. of Employees

2015/2016
Vacancies

% of vacancies

CEO’s Office 9 13 8 5 38%

Human Resources 17 23 19 4 17%

Finance and Support 
Services

19 25 17 8 32%

Limpopo Wildlife 
Resorts

136 163 129 34 21%

Tourism 19 26 20 6 23%

The positions were not filled due to the envisaged transfer of Limpopo Wildlife Resorts to the Department of Economic 
Development Environment and Tourism
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LABOUR RELATIONS: MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 0

Final Written warning 0

Dismissal 0

Other* 1

REASONS FOR STAFF LEAVING 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death 2 1%

Resignation 3 2%

Dismissal 0 0%

Retirement 1 1%

Ill health 0 0%

Expiry of contract 3 2%

Other 1 1%

Total 10 5%

The positions were not filled due to the envisaged transfer of Limpopo Wildlife Resorts to the Department of Economic 
Development Environment and Tourism

* Abscondment 

EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS 

LEVELS

MALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 13 16 1 1 0 0 1 1

Skilled 9 19 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 28 29 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 23 25 0 1 0 1 0 1

TOTAL 78 94 1 2 1 1 2
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EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS 

LEVELS

FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 6 13 0 0 0 0 0 1

Skilled 16 16 0 1 0 1 2 2

Semi-skilled 70 79 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 18 20 0 1 0 1 0 0

TOTAL 111 131 0 2 0 2 2 3

EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS 

LEVELS

DISABLED STAFF

MALE FEMALE

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 1 1

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 1 1

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 2 2
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FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION

PART E



The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the public entity’s annual financial statements and 
for the judgements made in this information.

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control designed 
to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly reflect the operations of the public entity for the financial year ended 
31 March 2016. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the AFS of the public entity. 

The Agency’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been audited by the external 
auditors and their report is presented on page 62.

The Annual Financial Statements of the public entity set out on page 67 to page 122 have been approved.

____________________________
NDUMISO MATLALA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Limpopo Tourism Agency
31 March 2016

____________________________
K.A DIPELA
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 
Limpopo Tourism Agency
31 March 2016

Statement of Responsibility for the Annual Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
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2. REPORT OF THE CHIEF 
    EXECUTIVE OFFICER
BUDGET ALLOCATION

During the year under review, the Agency received a budget of R167,011m including R65,716m as conditional grant for 
infrastructure development.
 
REVENUE

During the year under review, the agency revenue collection amounted to R10,46m as compared to R10,04m : 2014-15 
while the budget was R167,01m and R156,07m :2014-15. The cash injection of R65,716m was conditional grant for the 
infrastructure development, which was used to refurbish, improve and upgrade infrastructure and facilities in the State 
Owned Nature Reserves.

EXPENDITURE

During the year under review, the total expenditure for the entity R109,76m including R65,716m on infrastructure, 
while the balance of R19,3m was committed as at the end of the reporting period. The details of the breakdown in 
expenditure are contained on page of 42 of the Annual Financial Statements.

CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS AND CHALLENGES

In the year under review, the previously identified capacity constraints in the Finance and Supply Chain Management 
Unit.  These constraints have continued to compromise internal controls and segregation of duties, which has being 
worsened by the transfer of support staff to the department when the LWR function was transferred.  

DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES

The entity has discontinued with the LWR function that was transferred to the department with effect from 1st April 
2016.

REQUEST FOR FUNDS ROLL OVER

The entity received an additional funding of R10,816m for Infrastructure development (R5,716m), Arrears rentals 
(R3,0m) and Assets valuation (R2,1m)

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Supply Chain Management Unit has been established and operates under a direct supervision of the Chief Financial 
Officer.  The Unit has embarked on the implementation of the standard procedures that would guide its operations to 
improve the state of internal controls. 

CHALLENGES EXPERIENCED 

Lack of capacity remains a great challenge in the Supply Chain Management Unit.  Adequate Supply Chain 
Management capacity in the form of appropriate organisational structure and skilled supply chain management 
personnel are key success factors to ensure compliance to the prescripts and proper segregation of duties. Through this 
process of segregation of duties, greater efficiency and risk management is promoted.
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Lack of capacity within the Supply Chain Management Unit will have adverse effect going forward if not address.

PRIOR YEAR AUDIT ISSUES 

The audit report from the Auditor General on page XXX detailed the issues. These issues were resolved by compilation 
of the audit action plan and the development of the risk register to mitigate the risks identified.

LOOK AND FUTURE PLANS TO ADDRESS FINANCIAL CHALLENGES 

As the new entity, there is a dire need to restructure and re-design the new organisational structure that will be aligned 
to the new mandate and assist in the achievement of the entity s objectives. The whole of the CFO division needs to be 
adequately capacitated due to the transfer of support staff to the department, which has left a huge gap in the division. 
This has to be effected to as a matter of urgency to ensure segregation of duties for continued maintenance of internal 
controls.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The transition from the old LTA that is inclusive of Limpopo Wildlife Resorts to the new LTA that is focused exclusively 
on tourism marketing has proven not to be a simple straightforward process as it commenced with fits and false starts.  
The transition process is set to overlap into the new financial year.  We however do not anticipate any major hiccups in 
the transition process.

The entity is a non-business entity under schedule 3 (C) of the PFMA and as such it is 100% funded from government 
appropriations. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

We wish to incalculably thank both the Shareholder and the Board for their support and appreciate the cooperation 
and support we received from our various stakeholders in the tourism sector as well as people of Limpopo as a whole. 
We would also like to express our sincere gratitude to both LTA’s staff, Limpopo Tourism Industry members for their 
support. 
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3. REPORT OF THE 
    EXTERNAL AUDITOR  

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

1. I have audited the financial statements of the 
Limpopo Tourism Agency set out on pages 75 to 
122, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes 
in net assets and cash flow statement and the 
statement of comparison of budget information 
with actual information for the year then ended, 
as well as the notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. The accounting authority, is responsible for 
the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with the 
South African Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) 
and the requirements of the requirements of 
the Public Finance Management Act of South 
Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and 
for such internal control as the accounting 
authority determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on my 
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing. Those 
standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements, and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for my qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6. The public entity did not determine the useful 
lives of buildings in accordance with GRAP 17 
Property, plant and equipment. As a result, 
depreciation on building was not calculated. 
Consequently buildings with a gross carrying 
amount of R55 637 495 was overstated with 
a resultant impact on the depreciation for 
the period being understated. I was not able 
to determine the impact on the net carrying 
amount of building, as it was impracticable to 
do so.

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE 
LIMPOPO PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON 
LIMPOPO TOURISM AGENCY
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7. As the public entity did not account for any 
of the retention payable on all the running 
projects both in current and prior period 
in accordance with GRAP 1 Presentation of 
financial statements, work in progress in both 
the previous and current period is understated. I 
was not able to determine the impact on the net 
carrying amount of plant and equipment, as it 
was impracticable to do so.

8. The public entity did not recognise all items 
of property, plant and equipment in accordance 
with GRAP 17 Property, plant and equipment. 
Consequently, property, plant and equipment 
were understated. I was not able to determine 
the impact on the net carrying amount of plant 
and equipment, as it was impracticable to do so.

9. Non-current assets of the public entity 
were materially misstated, as depreciation on 
property, plant and equipment was incorrectly 
calculated. As a result, property, plant and 
equipment, were overstated by R1 151 809 and 
depreciation was understated by R1 151 809. 
Additionally, there was a resultant impact on the 
surplus for the period and on the accumulated 
surplus.

PAYABLES

10. The public entity did not recognise all 
amounts payable that meet the definition of a 
liability, in accordance with GRAP 1 Presentation 
of financial statements. As the public entity did 
not account for any of the retention payable 
on all the running projects both in current and 
prior period, I was not able to determine the full 
extent of the understatement of payables as it 
was impracticable to do so.

EXPENDITURE

11. The public entity did not calculate 
depreciation on building and incorrectly 
calculated the amount of depreciation on 
property, plant and equipment for the year, 
consequently depreciation was understated. I 
was not able to determine the impact of the 
understatement on the statement of financial 
performance, as it was impracticable to do so.

COMMITMENT

12. The public entity did not have adequate 
systems to maintain records of commitments 
at year end. Retention payable on all the 
construction projects was not recorded in both 
current and prior year, resulting in amount being 
reflected as commitment. Consequently, amount 
disclosed as commitment is overstated both in 
the current and previous year. I was unable to 
determine whether commitment as disclosed 
in the financial statements is correct, as it was 
impracticable to do so.

QUALIFIED OPINION

13. In my opinion, except for the effects of the 
matters described in the basis for qualified 
opinion paragraphs, the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Limpopo Tourism 
Agency as at 31 March 2016 and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended, in accordance with the SA Standards of 
GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

14. I draw attention to the matters below. My 
opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters.

SIGNIFICANT UNCERTAINTIES

15. With reference to note 24 to the financial 
statements, the entity is a defendant in various 
lawsuits with service providers and former board 
members with a total possible cash outflow of 
R14 329 486.

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

16. As disclosed in note 31 to the financial 
statements, the entity disclosed fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure of R1 746 247 (2015: 
R1 368 095) and there are currently under 
investigation.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

17. As disclosed in note 32 to the financial 
statements, the entity disclosed irregular 
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expenditure of R4 370 120 (2015: R11 862 
078) due to the contravention of supply chain 
management (SCM) regulations.

RESTATEMENT OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES

18. As disclosed in the note 27 to the financial 
statements, the corresponding figures for 31 
March 2015 have been restated as a result of 
errors discovered during 2016 in the financial 
statements of the entity at, and for the year 
ended, 31 March 2015.

ADDITIONAL MATTER

19. I draw attention to the matter below. My 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Unaudited supplementary schedules

20. The supplementary information set out 
on pages 69 to 122 does not form part of 
the financial statements and is presented as 
additional information. I have not audited this 
and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion 
thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

21. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of 
South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the 
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 
responsibility to report findings on the reported 
performance information against predetermined 
objectives of selected programmes presented in 
the annual performance report, compliance with 
legislation and internal control. The objective 
of my tests was to identify reportable findings 
as described under each subheading but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance on these 
matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion 
or conclusion on these matters.

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

22. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
about the usefulness and reliability of the 
reported performance information of the 
following selected programmes presented in the 
annual performance report of the public entity 
for the year ended 31 March 2016:
• Programme 4: Limpopo Wildlife Resorts on 

pages 28 to 31
• Programme 5: Tourism and Marketing on 

pages 32 to 34

23. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported 
performance information to determine whether 
it was presented in accordance with the 
National Treasury’s annual reporting principles 
and whether the reported performance was 
consistent with the planned [programmes. I 
further performed tests to determine whether 
indicators and targets were well defined, 
verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the National 
Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI).

24. I assessed the reliability of the reported 
performance information to determine whether 
it was valid, accurate and complete. 

25. The material findings in respect of the 
selected programmes are as follows:

PROGRAMME 4: LIMPOPO WILDLIFE 
RESORTS

USEFULNESS OF REPORTED PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

26. Treasury Regulation (TR) 30.1.3(g) requires 
the annual performance plan to form the 
basis for the annual report, therefore requiring 
consistency of objectives, indicators and targets 
between planning and reporting documents. 
Important reported objectives were not 
consistent with those in the approved annual 
performance plan.

27. TR 30.1.1 requires the executive authority 
to approve the annual performance plan. 
Therefore, if this plan is changed in the year 
due to significant policy or mandate changes, 
the executive authority must also approve the 
updated plan. Material changes were made to 
important objectives reported in the annual 
performance report without the necessary 
approval.

 65     ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16   



RELIABILITY OF REPORTED PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

28. The FMPPI requires auditees to have 
appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify 
and store performance information to ensure 
reliable reporting of actual achievements against 
planned objectives, indicators and targets. The 
reported achievements against planned targets 
of important indicators were not reliable when 
compared to the evidence provided.

PROGRAMME 5: TOURISM AND MARKETING

RELIABILITY OF REPORTED PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

29. The FMPPI requires auditees to have 
appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify 
and store performance information to ensure 
reliable reporting of actual achievements 
against planned objectives, indicators and 
targets. Adequate and reliable corroborating 
evidence could not be provided for the reported 
achievements against planned targets of 
important indicators.

ADDITIONAL MATTER

30. I draw attention to the following matter:
Unaudited supplementary schedules

31. The supplementary information set out 
on pages x to x does not form part of the 
annual performance report and is presented as 
additional information. I have not audited these 
schedules and, accordingly, I do not report on 
them.

COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

32. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
that the public entity had complied with 
applicable legislation regarding financial 
matters, financial management and other related 
matters. My material findings on compliance 
with specific matters in key legislation, as set out 
in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, 
are as follows:

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT

33. The 2015/16 up to the 2019/20 strategic 
plans did not form the basis for the annual 
report of the entity as required by section 55(2)
(a) of the PFMA and TR 30.1.3(g).

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, 
PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL REPORTS

34. The financial statements submitted for 
auditing were not prepared in accordance 
with the prescribed financial reporting 
framework as required by section 55(1)(b) of 
the PFMA. Material misstatements identified 
by the auditors in the submitted financial 
statements were not adequately corrected and 
the supporting records could not be provided 
subsequently, which resulted in the financial 
statements receiving a qualified audit opinion.
Procurement and contract management

35. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
could not be obtained that all contracts were 
awarded in accordance with the legislative 
requirements and a procurement process which 
is fair, equitable, transparent and competitive, 
as proper record keeping was not in place to 
ensure that complete, relevant and accurate 
information is accessible and available to 
support the procurement processes followed.

36. Goods and services with a transaction 
value below R500 000 were procured without 
obtaining the required price quotations, as 
required by TR 16A6.1.

37. Invitations for competitive bidding were not 
always advertised in at least the Construction 
Development Industry Board (CIDB) website, as 
required by CIDB Regulation 2.

38. The preference point system was not applied 
in all procurement of goods and services above 
R30 000 as required by section 2(a) of the 
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework 
Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000) (PPPFA) and TR 
16A6.3(b)

39. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could 
not be obtained that construction contracts 
were awarded to contractors that were 
registered with the CIDB and qualified for the 
contract in accordance with section 18(1) of the 
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Construction Industry Development Board Act, 
2000 (Act No. 38 of 2000) and CIDB regulations 
17 and 25(7A).

40. Persons in service of the public entity whose 
close family members, partners or associates 
had a private or business interest in contracts 
awarded by the public entity failed to disclose 
such interest, as required by TR 16A8.4.

EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

41. Effective steps were not taken to prevent 
irregular as well as fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of 
the PFMA.

CONSEQUENCE MANAGEMENT

42. Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps 
were not taken against officials who incurred 
and permitted irregular expenditure, and 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by 
section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA.

Internal control

43. I considered internal control relevant to 
my audit of the financial statements, annual 
performance report and compliance with 
legislation. The matters reported below are 
limited to the significant internal control 
deficiencies that resulted in the basis for 
qualified opinion, the findings on the annual 
performance report and the findings on 
compliance with legislation included in this 
report.

LEADERSHIP

44. Leadership of the entity did not always fill 
critical positions, which resulted in decline in 
the control and monitoring environment of 
the entity, with the result that the action plan 
was not implemented in time and financial and 
performance information being misstated.
Financial and performance management
45. Management did not always perform the 
daily reconciliation and reviews required to 
ensure the prevention and detection of financial 
and performance errors and non-compliance 
with relevant legislations.

GOVERNANCE

46. Risk management strategy and oversight 
bodies were in place however, it was not 
sufficient to prevent and detect the non-
compliance and errors in the financial 
information. 

OTHER REPORTS

47. I draw attention to the following 
engagements that could potentially impact on 
the public entity’s financial, performance and 
compliance related matters. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of these engagements that 
are either in progress or have been completed.

INVESTIGATIONS

48. An internal investigation was conducted by 
management flowing from face value indications 
of irregularities, poor accountability as well as 
the failure to meet deadlines/milestones on 
time in the execution of the Kamo Contract 
implementation at Doorndraai. The investigation 
confirmed the suspected fraudulent activity 
in the conduct of the contract. Management 
is however not in a position to conclusively 
and beyond reasonable doubt assign guilt 
to a particular individual or individuals as yet 
that can only be the subject of a much deeper 
investigation, as recommended by the report. 
It is on this basis that management is in the 
process of instituting a much wider and more 
in-depth investigation so as to establish the 
extent to which such fraudulent activity affects 
other LWR infrastructure projects and the extent 
of staff involvement in same. Management 
acknowledge that any irregular expenditure 
component shall accordingly be recognized 
and dealt with as per legislation and relevant 
regulations. 

______________________________
Polokwane
31 July 2016
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BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
The members are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting 
records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial 
information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the annual financial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year 2015/16 and the results of its operations 
and cash flows for the said period. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual 
financial statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established 
by the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members 
to meet these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit 
in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. 
These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical 
standards in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above 
reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known 
forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it 
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system 
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The members have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2017 and, in the light of this review 
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Limpopo Department of Economic Development Environment and Tourism for 
continued funding of operations. The annual financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going 
concern and that the Limpopo Department of Economic Development Environment and Tourism has neither the 
intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the entity. The board is in receipt of a confirmation 
letter to this effect.

The board is responsible for the financial affairs of the entity.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity’s annual financial 
statements. 

The annual financial statements have been examined by the entity’s external auditors and their report is presented on 
page 69.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 69 to 122, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, 
were approved by the board on 30 May 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

____________________________
K.A DIPELA
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD
Limpopo Tourism Agency



BOARD’S REPORT
The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2016.

1. Review of activities

Main business and operations

The entity is engaged in the promotion and development of tourism in the province. The operating 
results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements 
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. Going concern

The Department of Economic Developmement, Environment and Tourism has confirmed the 
funding for Limpopo Tourism Agency for the forseeable future and a letter of this effect has been 
received.

3. Subsequent events

The entity has undergone mandate change. The Provincial Executive Council has taken a 
resolution to transfer the Limpopo Wildlife Resorts (LWR) function to the Department of Economic 
Development Environment and Tourism (LEDET) with effect from the 1st April 2016.

4. Accounting policies

The annual financial statements prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board as the 
prescribed framework by National Treasury.

5. Non-current assets

No major changes occured in the nature of the non-current assets of the entity during the year or 
policies relating to their use.

6. Board
The board members of the entity for the year under review.

Mr. KA Dipela (Chairperson) Mr. Mantsho Owen PhashaMr. Moses Mabokela Chikane 
Deputy Chairperson of the Board
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Mr. Papi Petrus Motene

Ms. Mathukana Mokoka

Dr. Annemie De Klerk

Kgoshigadi Maponye 
Edith Nchabeleng 

Mr. Tirhani Ezekiel Mabunda

Cllr. Orginia Mafefe

Ms. Phophi Khumbudzo 
Silence Ntshavheni

Kgoshi Seshego 
Sekgalabjana Solly Sekororo

Dr. Thidziambi 
Gladys Nethengwe

7. Company Secretary

The secretary of the entity is TG Kotsedi of:
Business address
Southern Gateway Ext 4
N1 Main Road
Polokwane
0699
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BOARD’S REPORT
8. Board members and executive management emoluments

ECONOMIC ENTITY 

Board expenses as separately disclosed in Note 16 in the Statement of Financial Performance for 
R 1 725 111 ( R 1 619 767 in 2015) and the net cash effect of R 1 729 910 in the Statement of 
Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.

Board Fees Allowances Travel Total package
2016

Total package
2015

Board members
KA Dipela 407,615 11,000 183,285 601,900 -
MM Chikane 407,615 8,250 73,430 489,295 -
OM Phasha 82,243 8,250 31,713 122,206 -
PP Motene 82,243 - 49,901 132,144 -
TE Mabunda 82,243 - 53,240 135,483 -
OH Mafefe - - 18,624 18,624 -
ME Nchabeleng(Kgoshigadi) 82,243 8,250 25,110 115,603 -
KPS Ntshavheni 82,243 - 20,688 102,931 -
TG Nethengwe (Dr) 82,243 8,250 52,876 143,369 -
SSS Sekororo 82,243 8,250 30,112 120,605 -
MI Matsetela 37,056 1,000 7,370 45,426 544,771
TS Mathumbu 37,056 600 - 37,656 455,583
MS Dikgale 7,477 - - 7,477 110,199
NA Dzuguda 8,099 600 1,036 9,735 125,143
LM Kgalema 7,477 600 3,393 11,470 162,632
JA Kruger 7,477 - 1,040 8,517 105,640
GL Maluleka 7,477 600 1,488 9,565 137,972
MM Mpai 7,477 - 30 7,507 93,105
NS Nethengwe 7,477 - - 7,477 122,360

1,518,004 55,650 553,336 2,126,990 1,857,405

Audit committee members
MG Mokoka 89,089 8,250 28,692 126,031 -
MP Mongalo 54,117 - 5,837 59,954 59,017

143,206 8,250 34,529 185,985 59,017

1,661,210 63,900 587,865 2,312,975 1,916,422
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BOARD’S REPORT

REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Basic Salary Allowances Company
Contribution

13th Cheque Leavy gratuity Acting
allowance

Total package
2016

Total package
2015

Chief Executive Officer
TG Kotsedi  (Acting) * - - - - - 11,605 11,605 102,657
SM Tlaka   (Acting) * - - - - - - - 624,229
SF Hlungwani (Acting) * - - - - - 59,003 59,003 10,437
NM Matlala 661,351 87,500 38,263 17,731 - - 804,845 -

661,351 87,500 38,263 17,731 - 70,608 875,453 737,323

Chief Financial Officer
MS Manamela 974,277 156,000 57,912 62,442 - - 1,250,631 1,199,215

Senior management
SM Tlaka  (Acting COO) - - 18,333 - 23,070 390,642 432,045 579,773
TG Kotsedi  (CS) 945,683 55,800 51,516 55,327 - - 1,108,326 1,071,496
SF Hlungwani  (EDCO) 1,020,761 81,324 56,512 60,885 - - 1,219,482 1,169,289
LR Tshabalala  (Tourism Exec) 935,584 93,828 114,646 60,120 - - 1,204,178 1,154,541
TP Maleka  ( HR Exec) 855,175 96,000 80,783 54,220 - - 1,086,178 1,041,531
MT Phalala (Acting CS) - - - - - - - 72,072
MP Mayimela (Acting EDCO) - - - - - 6,548 6,548 6,850

3,757,203 326,952 321,790 230,552 23,070 397,190 5,056,757 5,095,552
5,392,831 570,452 417,965 310,725 23,070 467,798 7,182,841 7,032,090

* These executives acted as CEO during the year.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

* See Note 27

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015
Restated*

Assets

Current Assets
Inventories 4 252,418 374,137
Receivables from exchange transactions 5 639,255 1,734,287
Prepayments 47,406 110,987
Cash and cash equivalents 6 18,286,284 30,175,842

19,225,363 32,395,253

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 168,921,470 124,713,250
Total Assets 188,146,833 157,108,503

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Special funding 7 469,892 675,507
Finance lease obligation 8 3,063,931 1,240,727
Payables from exchange transactions 11 10,389,219 18,666,322
Revenue payables to Provincial Fund 12 857,178 614,726
Provisions 9 713,000 808,000
Income received in advance 284,586 508,135
Unearned revenue 22,056 35,620
Deferred income - Infrastructure 10 10,586,717 14,768,549

26,386,579 37,317,586

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 8 36,156,024 39,219,955
Provisions 9 4,056,000 5,545,000

40,212,024 44,764,955
Total Liabilities 66,598,603 82,082,541
Net Assets 121,548,230 75,025,962

Reserves
Revaluation reserve 79,777,423 79,777,423
Accumulated surplus 41,770,807 (4,751,461)
Total Net Assets 121,548,230 75,025,962
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

* See Note 27

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015
Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Parks revenue 8,639,562 7,714,356
Concessions 233,996 282,627
Tourism revenue 63,132 10,422
Other income 572,985 882,016
Interest received 14 958,014 1,151,797
Total revenue from exchange transactions 10,467,689 10,041,218

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 13 101,295,000 80,873,000
Reimbursement-Tourism revenue 15,000 1,574,652
Grant-DEA 7 - 1,860,378
Conditional grant income-Infrastructure 13 50,113,046 60,441,495
Grant  revenue 13 5,016,237 12,289,956
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 156,439,283 157,039,481
Total revenue 13 166,906,972 167,080,699

Expenditure
Board expenditure 16 (1,725,111) (1,619,767)
Debt Impairment 18 (2,208,531) (160,736)
Depreciation and amortisation (6,420,054) (10,236,600)
Personnel cost 15 (53,235,696) (54,424,201)
Finance costs 17 (11,019,654) (11,202,221)
General Expenses 19 (33,127,421) (32,210,758)
Office rental (50,048) (443,037)
Repairs and maintenance (1,974,204) (11,886,423)
Total expenditure (109,760,719) (122,183,743)
Operating surplus 21 57,146,253 44,896,956
Write offs/ disposal of assets (332,956) (83,282)
Loss on foreign exchange - (260)
Transfer of assets to LEDET - (80,377,082)

(332,956) (80,460,624)
Surplus (deficit) for the year 56,813,297 (35,563,668)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Figures in Rand
Revaluation

reserve
Accumulated

surplus
Total net
assets

Balance at 01 April 2014 38,743,374 34,827,590 73,570,964
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year - (35,563,668) (35,563,668)
Transfer to provincial revenue fund - (9,141,398) (9,141,398)
Addition of building previously not recognised - 5,126,015 5,126,015
Revaluation reserve for immovable asset 41,034,049 - 41,034,049
Total changes 41,034,049 (39,579,051) 1,454,998

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2015 79,777,423 (4,751,461) 75,025,962
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year - 56,813,297 56,813,297
Transfer to provincial revenue fund(PRF) - (10,291,029) (10,291,029)
Total changes - 46,522,268 46,522,268
Balance at 31 March 2016 79,777,423 41,770,807 121,548,230

Note(s)

* See Note 27

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16     76



CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015
Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Grants 101,295,000 80,873,000
Interest income 958,014 1,151,797
Other receipts 7,953,475 8,231,664
Grant-revenue enhancement - 12,289,956

110,206,489 102,546,417

Payments
Employee costs (54,817,213) (53,974,222)
Suppliers (43,226,186) (41,950,101)
Finance costs (9,278) (19,440)
Board expenses (1,729,910) (1,677,857)

(99,782,587) (97,621,620)

Net cash flows from operating activities 22 10,423,902 4,924,797

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (50,963,560) (41,353,990)

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment to provincial revenue fund (10,048,574) (13,162,355)
Grant received - infrastructure 65,716,000 73,200,000
Finance lease payments (12,248,778) (12,278,986)
Unspent grant surrendered (14,768,549) (27,539,116)
Grant received-DEA - 2,430,000

Net cash flows from financing activities 28,650,099 22,649,543

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (11,889,559) (13,779,650)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 30,175,842 43,955,491

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 18,286,283 30,175,841

* See Note 27
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange
transactions
Other income- receipts - - - 8,639,562 8,639,562
Interest received - - - 958,014 958,014

Total revenue from exchange
transactions

- - - 9,597,576 9,597,576

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 96,195,000 5,100,000 101,295,000 101,295,000 -
Grant revenue-Revenue
enhancement

14,900,000 - 14,900,000 14,900,000 -

Conditional grant income-
Infrastructure

45,100,000 5,716,000 50,816,000 50,816,000 -

Total revenue from non-
exchange transactions

156,195,000 10,816,000 167,011,000 167,011,000 -

Total revenue 156,195,000 10,816,000 167,011,000 176,608,576 9,597,576

Expenditure
Personnel (61,866,756) 4,569,820 (57,296,936) (54,817,213) 2,479,723
Board fees (1,837,640) (850,000) (2,687,640) (1,729,910) 957,730
Finance costs (12,649,195) 302,860 (12,346,335) (12,248,778) 97,557
General Expenses (24,753,996) (5,250,020) (30,004,016) (30,166,735) (162,719)
Arrears settlements -Four arrows (3,000,000) (3,000,000) (6,000,000) (6,000,000) -
Operating expenses-
Infrastructure

(11,081,333) 3,190,168 (7,891,165) (7,004,148) 887,017

Total expenditure (115,188,920) (1,037,172) (116,226,092) (111,966,784) 4,259,308
Operating surplus 41,006,080 9,778,828 50,784,908 64,641,792 13,856,884
Surplus for the year 41,006,080 9,778,828 50,784,908 64,641,792 13,856,884
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Non-Current Assets
Other capital expenditure (3,015,000) 1,691,980 (1,323,020) (760,231) 562,789
Property, plant and equipment (34,018,667) (15,443,221) (49,461,888) (50,151,609) (689,721)

(37,033,667) (13,751,241) (50,784,908) (50,911,840) (126,932)
Total Assets (37,033,667) (13,751,241) (50,784,908) (50,911,840) (126,932)
Net Assets (37,033,667) (13,751,241) (50,784,908) (50,911,840) (126,932)
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LIMPOPO TOURISM AGENCY
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance 
with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 
accordance with historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the 
preparation of these annual financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional 
currency of the entity.

1.2 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will 
continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related 
disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the 
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be 
material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: Trade receivables, loans 
and other receivables The entity assesses its trade receivables and loans and other receivables for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should 
be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable 
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
The impairment for trade receivables and loans and other receivables is calculated on a portfolio 
basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions 
and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. 
These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the
estimated loss emergence period.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to 
approximate their fair values.
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The short term receivables and payables are not discounted if their terms are in accordance with 
normal terms in the public.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined 
based on the higher of valuein-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations 
require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the assumption may 
change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material adjustment to the 
carrying value of tangible assets.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information 
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 9 - Provisions.

Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence 
that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest 
rate, computed at initial recognition. 

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) 
that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for 
administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will 

flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs 
attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of 
acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset 
or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is 
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s 
deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment.
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Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and 
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement 
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity 
is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the 
asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases 
when the item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management.

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they 
meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and 
equipment and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost 
of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous 
inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment 
losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment 
losses except for buildings which are carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date 
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date 
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the 
date of the revaluation is restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of 
the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the 
date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 
amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a 
revaluation surplus. The increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a 
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or 
deficit in the current period. The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent 
of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is 
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transferred directly to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised. The revaluation surplus in 
equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful 
lives to their estimated residual value. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment 
losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date 
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount 
does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a 
revaluation surplus. The increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a 
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.
 
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus 
or deficit in the current period. The decrease is debited in revaluation surplus to the extent of any 
credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item         Average useful life
Land
Buildings        10-30 years
Leasehold property       5 years
Plant and machinery      4-12 years
Furniture and fixtures      3-18 years
Motor vehicles       4-11 years
Office equipment       8-12 years
IT equipment       3-10 years
Mobile offices       5-7 years
Fencing        4-10 years
Water management equimpment     4-13 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is 
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the 
previous estimate unless expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to 
the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
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The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the 
carrying amount of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when 
there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the 
derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or a residual interest of another entity.

Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face 
of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or 
deficit-held for trading

Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Loans and receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position 
when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial 
liability. The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if 
subsequently measured at fair value].

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the 
following categories:
• Financial instruments at fair value.
• Financial instruments at amortised cost.
• Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
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Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial 
instrument is not active, the entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The 
objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the transaction price would have 
been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating 
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument 
that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there 
is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that 
technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use 
of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors 
that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic 
methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the valuation 
technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions 
in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available 
observable market data.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than 
the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required 
to be paid. 

1.6 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of 
each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at 
amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial 
position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the 
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
The difference between
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the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an 
operating lease asset or liability.

1.7 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
• distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
• consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal 

charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or 
distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services 
produced and segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the 
individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula 
is used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses 
are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of 
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of 
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount 
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or 
current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as 
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.8 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. 
An asset generates a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that 
adopted by a profit-oriented entity. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above 
the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential 
through depreciation (amortisation).
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Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position 
after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of 
generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding 
finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over 
its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length 
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is 
impaired.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of 
the asset.

Value in use
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its 
useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the entity estimates the future cash inflows and 
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the 
entity applies the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.

Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money, represented by the current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for 
which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

Recognition and measurement (individual asset)

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the 
cash-generating asset to which it relates, the entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a 
requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-
generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying 
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

Reversal of impairment loss

The entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. 
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset 
attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or 
deficit.

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation 
increase.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the 
cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised 
carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Redesignation

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a 
non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that 
such a redesignation is appropriate.

1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. 
An asset generates a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that 
adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, 
it is impaired.
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The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-
generating asset may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets 
remaining service potential.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined 
using the following approach: 

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an 
impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-
cash-generating asset to which it relates, the entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a 
requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-
cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s 
revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining 
useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that 
asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying 
amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in 
surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a 
revaluation increase.
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After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the 
non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s 
revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining 
useful life.

Redesignation

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a 
non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that 
such a redesignation is appropriate.

1.10 Revenue payable to Provincial Revenue Fund

All revenue collected not appropriated by the legislation in terms of PFMA should be transferred 
to the Provincial Revenue Fund in terms of treasury instruction note 3 of 2014 which reads that 
Schedule 3C public entities must transfer the revenue collected to the Provincial Revenue Fund on 
monthly basis through the respective line department.

1.11 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered 
by employees. 

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due 
to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
• wages, salaries and social security contributions;
• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the 

compensation for the absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the 
reporting period in which the employees render the related employee service;

• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end 
of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service; and

• non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such 
as housing, cars and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity 
recognise the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for that service:
• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already 

paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an 
asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction 
in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the 
cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render 
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the 

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16     90



absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as 
the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 
accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when 
the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past 
events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the 
entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating 
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity 
recognise the contribution payable to
a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:
• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution 

already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity 
recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead 
to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in 
the cost of an asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months 
after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service, they are 
discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value of money. The currency and term of 
the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency 
and estimated term of the obligation. 

Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between 
the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in 
actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity recognise actuarial gains 
and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they occur.

Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-transferable financial 
instruments issued by the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate 
from the reporting entity and exists solely to pay or fund employee benefits and are available to be 
used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors 
(even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:
• the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit 

obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or
• the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already 

paid.
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Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting 
from employee service in the current period.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee 
service in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, 
post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service cost may be either 
positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity 
recognise past service cost as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan 
assets, of expected future payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee 
service in the current and prior periods.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:
• the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
• minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are 

to be settled directly;
• plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measure 
the resulting asset at the lower of:
• the amount determined above; and
• the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or 

reductions in future contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is 
determined using a discount rate which reflects the time value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit.

The entity determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan 
assets with sufficient regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements 
do not differ materially from the amounts that would be determined at the reporting date.

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service 
cost and, where applicable, past service cost, an entity shall attribute benefit to periods of service 
under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an employee’s service in later years will lead to a 
materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, an entity shall attribute benefit on a straight-
line basis from:
• the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the 

benefits are conditional on further service); until
• the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further 

benefits under the plan, other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for 
each plan. The results of the valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material 
changes in circumstances (including changes in market prices and interest rates) up to the reporting 
date. 
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The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan 
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or settlement 
comprises:
• any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and
• any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measure the obligation 
(and the related plan assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions (including current market 
interest rates and other current market prices).

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required 
to settle a defined benefit obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. 
The asset is measured at fair value. In all other respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan 
assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is [OR is not] presented as 
the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The entity offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan when the 
entity has a legally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle obligations under the 
other plan and intends either to settle the obligations on a net basis, or to realise the surplus in one 
plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously.

Actuarial assumptions

Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over 
which the obligations are to be settled.

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect 
the time value of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the 
time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-employment 
benefit obligations.

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects:
• estimated future salary increases;
• the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that 

goes beyond those terms) at the reporting date; and
• estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under 

a defined benefit plan, if, and only if, either:
• those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or
• past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some 

predictable manner, for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general 
salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical 
services, resulting from both inflation and specific changes in medical costs. 

Other post retirement obligations

The entity provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upon 
retirement to some retirees.
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The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the employee remaining in 
service up to retirement age and
the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over 
the period of employment.
Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations. The municipality also 
provides a gratuity and housing
subsidy on retirement to certain employees. An annual charge to income is made to cover both 
these liabilities.

The amount recognised as a liability for other long-term employee benefits is the net total of the 
following amounts:
• the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
• minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are 

to be settled directly.

The entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except to 
the extent that another Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
• current service cost;
• interest cost;
• the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset;
• actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately;
• past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and
• the effect of any curtailments or settlements.

1.12 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will 

be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle 
the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value 
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed 
by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as 
a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the 
provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate 
Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
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Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect 
the passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the 
contract is recognised and measured as a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
  - the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
  - the principal locations affected;
  - the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be   
    compensated for services being terminated;
  - the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
  - when the plan will be implemented; and
• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting 

to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which 
are those that are both:
 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
 not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is 
committed to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are 
recognised separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
 the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
 the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. 

Contingencies are disclosed in note 24.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due 
in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires 
judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
• financial difficulty of the debtor;
• defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
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• breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the 
agreed term and the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and

• a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and 
unemployment) that impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged 
on loan commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required 
to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the entity considers that an 
outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity recognises the obligation at the higher of:
• the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets; and
• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation 

recognised in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

1.13 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that 
will normally result in the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in 
a note to the financial statements, if both the following criteria are met:
• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, 

contracts for computer or building maintenance services); and
• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity 

– therefore salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit 
commitments are excluded.

1.14 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period 
when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions 
from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities 
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services 
or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade 
discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
• the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

goods;
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• the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated 
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 

flow to the entity; and
• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, 
revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all 
the following conditions are satisfied:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 

flow to the entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be 

measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, 
revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence 
that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much 
more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated 
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the 
reporting date. Stage of completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of 
total services to be performed.

1.15 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and 
receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to 
contributions from owners. 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange 
transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately 
equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately 
equal value in exchange.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange 
transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as 
revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
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As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of 
resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount 
of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets 
recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises 
revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be 
recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation 
at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. 
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is 
satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the entity recognises an asset in respect of 
transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for 
recognition as an asset.

The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the 
definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

1.16 Cost of sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in 
the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories 
to net realisable value and all deficits of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the 
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising 
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost 
of sales.

Contract costs comprise:
• costs that relate directly to the specific contract;
• costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract on 

a systematic and rational basis; and
• such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the contract.

1.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the 
borrowing of funds.
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Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.18 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction.

At each reporting date:
• foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
• non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 

the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items 
at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period 
or in previous annual financial statements are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which 
they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised directly in net assets, any exchange 
component of that gain or loss is recognised directly in net assets. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in surplus or deficit, any exchange component of that gain or loss is 
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rands by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the date 
of the cash flow.

1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the 
statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure 
is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently 
accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised 
expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any 
applicable legislation, including -
 (a) this Act; or
 (b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms  
      of the Act; or
 (c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial   
      government.
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National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 
76(4) of the PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was 
condoned before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be 
recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is 
also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for 
which condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure 
register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial 
statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in 
the following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be 
updated with the amount condoned. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and 
which was not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded 
appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be 
attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is 
not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt 
impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular 
expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been 
condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the 
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements 
and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.21 Budget information

Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget 
authorisations (or equivalent), which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or 
similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were 
obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting. 
The actual financial statement information is therefore presented on comparable basis to the 
budget information. The comparison and the reconciliation between the statement of financial 
performance and the budget for the reporting period have been included in the Statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.22 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly 
owned by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence 
of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of 
government are considered to be related parties.
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Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
the entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, 
in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be 
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business 
are disclosed. 

2. New standards and interpretations

GRAP 20: Related parties

The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting entity’s annual financial statements 
contain the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and 
surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions 
and outstanding balances with such parties.

An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in 
this standard referred to as the reporting entity) shall apply this standard in:
• dentifying related party relationships and transactions;
• identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related 

parties;
• identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and
• determining the disclosures to be made about those items.

This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding 
balances, including commitments, in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the 
reporting entity in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements. This standard also applies to individual annual financial statements.

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and 
relationships with related parties may affect users’ assessments of the financial position and 
performance of the reporting entity and its ability to deliver agreed services, including assessments 
of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures that the reporting entity 
is transparent about its dealings with related parties.

The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly 
control the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an 
entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. As a minimum, the following are regarded 
as related parties of the reporting entity:
• A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that 

person:
 - has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
 - has significant influence over the reporting entity;
 - is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity.
• An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
 - the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling  
   entity, controlled entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others);
 - one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint     
   venture of a member of an economic entity of which the other entity is a member);
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 - both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
 - one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third  
   entity;
 - the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either 
   the entity or an entity related to the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the  
   sponsoring employers are related to the entity;
 - the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and
 - a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the  
   management of that entity (or its controlling entity).

The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services 
or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is 
charged.

The standard elaborates on the definitions and identification of:
• Close member of the family of a person;
• Management;
• Related parties;
• Remuneration; and
• Significant influence

The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of:
• Control;
• Related party transactions; and
• Remuneration of management

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date 
for the standard.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity’s annual financial statements.

GRAP 17 (as amended 2015): Property, Plant and Equipment

Based on the feedback received as part of the post-implementation review, the Board agreed to 
reconsider certain principles in GRAP 16 and GRAP 17. In particular, the Board agreed to:
• Review the principles and explanations related to the distinction between investment property 

and property, plant and equipment.
• Consider whether an indicator-based assessment of useful lives of assets could be introduced.
• Clarify the wording related to the use of external valuers.
• Introduce more specific presentation and disclosure requirements for capital work-in-progress.
• Review the encouraged disclosures and assess whether any should be made mandatory or 

deleted.
• Require separate presentation of expenditure incurred on repairs and maintenance in the 

financial statements.

Amendments identified as part of the post-implementation review, affected the following areas:
 Indicator-based assessment of the useful lives of assets
 Use of external valuers
 Encouraged disclosures
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 Capital work-in-progress
 Expenditure incurred on repairs and maintenance

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2016.

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2016 annual financial statements.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity’s annual financial statements.

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published 
and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2016 or later 
periods:

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting

Segments are identified by the way in which information is reported to management, both for 
purposes of assessing performance and making decisions about how future resources will be 
allocated to the various activities undertaken by the entity. The major classifications of activities 
identified in budget documentation will usually reflect the segments for which an entity reports 
information to management.

Segment information is either presented based on service or geographical segments. Service 
segments relate to a distinguishable component of an entity that provides specific outputs 
or achieves particular operating objectives that are in line with the entity’s overall mission. 
Geographical segments relate to specific outputs generated, or particular objectives achieved, by an 
entity within a particular region.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its effective date has not yet been determined 
by the Minister of Finance. The effective date indicated is a provisional date and could change 
depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance.

Directive 2 - Transitional provisions for public entities, municipal entities and constitutional 
institutions, states that no comparative segment information need to be presented on initial 
adoption of this Standard.

Directive 3 - Transitional provisions for high capacity municipalities states that no comparative 
segment information need to be presented on initial adoption of the Standard. Where items have 
no been recognised as a result of transitional provisions under the Standard of GRAP on Property, 
Plant and Equipment, recognition requirements of this Standard would not apply to such items until 
the transitional provision in that Standard expires. 

Directive 4 – Transitional provisions for medium and low capacity municipalities states that no 
comparative segment information need to be presented on initial adoption of the Standard. 
Where items have not been recognised as a result of transitional provisions un the Standard of 
GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment and the Standard of GRAP on Agriculture, the recognition 
requirements of the Standard would not apply to such items until the transitional provision in that
standard expires.

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
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The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date 
for the standard.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity’s annual financial statements.

Directive 12: The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public Entities

Historically, public entities have prepared financial statements in accordance with generally 
recognised accounting practice, unless the Accounting Standards Board (the Board) approved 
the application of generally accepted accounting practice for that entity. “Generally accepted 
accounting practice” has been taken to mean Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (Statements of GAAP), or for certain entities, International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Since Statements of GAAP have 
been withdrawn from 1 December 2012, public entities will be required to apply another reporting 
framework in the future.

The purpose of this Directive is to prescribe the criteria to be applied by public entities in selecting 
and applying an appropriate reporting framework.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity’s annual financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

3. Property, plant and equipment

2016 2015
Cost /

Valuation
Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Buildings 55,637,495 - 55,637,495 55,633,600 3,895 55,637,495
Leasehold property 36,704,395 (20,162,332) 16,542,063 36,704,395 (16,491,892) 20,212,503
Plant and machinery 4,507,552 (1,944,144) 2,563,408 4,466,558 (1,188,192) 3,278,366
Furniture and fixtures 7,048,841 (5,375,036) 1,673,805 7,162,734 (5,052,752) 2,109,982
Motor vehicles 3,760,438 (1,737,115) 2,023,323 4,543,017 (2,020,930) 2,522,087
Office equipment 2,373,061 (1,794,159) 578,902 2,093,104 (1,528,502) 564,602
IT equipment 2,765,887 (1,821,455) 944,432 2,695,309 (1,656,080) 1,039,229
Mobile offices 2,430,973 (1,985,755) 445,218 2,430,973 (1,911,184) 519,789
Capital work in progress 88,075,507 - 88,075,507 38,274,212 - 38,274,212
Communication equipment 431,139 (356,389) 74,750 432,978 (318,877) 114,101
Water network 793,296 (430,729) 362,567 775,230 (334,346) 440,884
Total 204,528,584 (35,607,114) 168,921,470 155,212,110 (30,498,860) 124,713,250

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand

3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Buildings 55,637,495 - - - 55,637,495
Leasehold property 20,212,503 - - (3,670,440) 16,542,063
Plant and machinery 3,278,366 225,737 (80,696) (859,999) 2,563,408
Furniture and fixtures 2,109,982 11,985 (20,980) (427,182) 1,673,805
Motor vehicles 2,522,087 - (70,009) (428,755) 2,023,323
Office equipment 564,602 336,426 (7,863) (314,263) 578,902
IT equipment 1,039,229 408,845 (70,621) (433,021) 944,432
Mobile offices 519,789 - - (74,571) 445,218
Capital work in progress 38,274,212 49,801,295 - - 88,075,507
Communication equipment 114,101 2,975 - (42,326) 74,750
Water network 440,884 173,966 (82,786) (169,497) 362,567

124,713,250 50,961,229 (332,955) (6,420,054) 168,921,470
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand

3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Opening
balance

Additions Transfers Revaluations Write-offs Depreciation Total

Buildings 79,020,831 3,114,021 (53,407,115) 30,873,442 - (3,963,684) 55,637,495
Leasehold property 23,882,852 - - - - (3,670,349) 20,212,503
Plant and machinery 5,273,343 4,742,584 (5,826,655) - (10,736) (900,170) 3,278,366
Furniture and fixtures 2,415,808 132,000 - - (19,063) (418,763) 2,109,982
Motor vehicles 3,092,754 4,337,025 (4,477,246) - - (430,446) 2,522,087
Office equipment 792,756 56,570 - - (7,448) (277,276) 564,602
IT equipment 1,314,444 117,501 - - (34,502) (358,214) 1,039,229
Mobile offices 252,813 294,872 - - - (27,896) 519,789
Capital work in progress 10,083,475 28,190,737 - - - - 38,274,212
Communication equipment 114,831 42,001 - - (5,216) (37,515) 114,101
Fencing 332,427 - (327,566) - - (4,861) -
Water network 815,091 326,966 (547,128) - (6,619) (147,426) 440,884

127,391,425 41,354,277 (64,585,710) 30,873,442 (83,584) (10,236,600) 124,713,250
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

Leasehold property 16,542,063 20,212,503

Finance lease payment represent rental payable by the entity for its office building. The lease term is 10 years with an avarage
effective borrowing rate of 28%.

Interest rate is linked to prime at the contract date. The lease escalate at a fixed percentage per annum and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rent. The entity's obligations under finance lease is secured by the lessor's change over
the leased asset.

Revaluations

The entity revalue its immovable properties every three years in terms of the financial policy.The properties were due to be
valued in 2014/15 financial year and the valuation was performed by  an independent valuer (Uniqueco Properties (Pty) Ltd-
Professional valuer -4464/2) (SACPVP).

4. Inventories

Merchandise 168,446 117,615
Consumable stores 83,972 256,522

252,418 374,137

Reconciliation of inventories expensed during the year
Opening balances 374,137 548,458
Purchases 684,393 610,050
Inventory expensed during the year (806,112) (784,371)

252,418 374,137

5. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors 2,733,076 1,978,195
Employee costs in advance 5,757 2,857
Deposits 60,333 83,333
Other receivables 360,468 -
Study assistance 11,183 35,583
Allowance for doubtful debts (2,531,562) (365,681)

639,255 1,734,287

Credit quality of trade and other receivables

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:

Trade receivables

Counterparties with external credit rating
Trade receivables outstanding for less than 6 months 206,181 1,468,270
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

5. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 365,681 433,166
Provision for impairment 2,208,531 160,736
Amounts written off as uncollectible (42,650) (204,237)
Amounts recovered - (23,984)

2,531,562 365,681

Ageing of receivables from non-exchange transactions Government debtors
Current 6,857 1,179,402
30 days - 235,600
60 days - -
90 days - 28,506
120 days - -
150 days - -
180 days 2,193,116 143,155

2,199,973 1,586,663

Ageing of receivables from exchange transactions
Other debtors
Current 172,723 16,711
30 days 14,255 1,340
60 days 4,294 6,711
90 days 2,684 -
120 days 2,684 -
150 days 2,684 -
180 days 333,778 366,770

533,102 391,532

6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 5,441 21,227
Bank balances 18,280,843 30,154,615

18,286,284 30,175,842

7. Special funding

Special funding consists of the following:

Opening balance 675,507 -
Grant received during the year - DEA - 2,535,885
Interest received 52,099 -
Less expenditure (257,714) (1,860,378)

469,892 675,507

Current liabilities 469,892 675,507
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

8. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 13,473,655 12,248,778
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 56,824,027 62,531,234
 - later than five years - 7,766,447

70,297,682 82,546,459
less: future finance charges (31,077,727) (42,085,777)
Present value of minimum lease payments 39,219,955 40,460,682

Present value of minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 3,063,931 1,240,727
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 36,156,025 31,801,998
 - later than five years - 7,417,958

39,219,956 40,460,683

Non-current liabilities 36,156,024 39,219,955
Current liabilities 3,063,931 1,240,727

39,219,955 40,460,682

Finance lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for its office building. The avarage lease term  is 10 years with
an avarage effective borrowing rate of 28% .

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. The  lease escalate at fixed percentage per annum and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rent. 

The entity's obligation under finance lease is secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

9. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2016

Opening
Balance

Provision
adjustment

Utilised
during the

year

Total

Provision for leave 4,250,000 (1,274,182) (262,818) 2,713,000
Provision for long service 2,103,000 332,978 (379,978) 2,056,000

6,353,000 (941,204) (642,796) 4,769,000

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015

Opening
Balance

Provision
adjustment

Utilised
during the

year

Total

Provision for leave 3,402,000 994,795 (146,795) 4,250,000
Provision for long service 1,844,000 661,297 (402,297) 2,103,000

5,246,000 1,656,092 (549,092) 6,353,000

Non-current liabilities 4,056,000 5,545,000
Current liabilities 713,000 808,000

4,769,000 6,353,000

The long service awards and leave provision represents estimates of the  entity's liability as valued by professional valuers with
an effectve valuation date of 31 March 2016.

The entity value long service awards and leave accruals annually using a professional valuer.One Pangaea Financial has been
appointed to estimate the present value of long service awards and leave accruals in the financial year under review.

Methodology.

The projected unit credit funding of method has been applied to determine the present value of the long service awards liability
and the related current service cost and interest.

The leave accrual liabilities have been valued on a similar method, although benefits are fully accrued at the valuation date.

Key assumption.

The assumption used as at 31 March 2016 are based on the following factors:

Consumer price index ( CPI).
Salary inflation.
Discount rate.
Real discount rate ( CPI).
Real discount rate ( salary).
Mortality.
Number of working days per annum.

The methodology of setting the financial assumption has been updated to be more duration specific.  At the previous valuation
date the, 31 March 2015, the duration liabilities were 9.48 years. At this duration the discount rate determined  by using the
Bond Exchange Zero Coupon Yield Curve and as at 31 March 2016 the duration liabilities  are 9.33% per annum. The assumed
discount rate used at the previous valuation 31 March 2015,  was 8.75% per annum.

However, it is assumed that the salary inflation would exceed general inflation by 1.0% per annum, i.e. 7.88% per annum. It is
relatively levels of discount rate and salary inflation, the discount rate and CPI,to one another are important, rather than
nominal values. 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

9. Provisions (continued)

Sensetivity analysis

The valuation bases assume that the salary inflation rate will be 1.34% less than the corresponding discount rate in the long
term.
If a 1% for CPI and salary cost  inflation remain, the assumption will result in roughly a 16.5% in the accrued liability. similarly, a
1% decrease in the salary inflation will result roughly a 13.7% decrease in the accrued liability.
The impact of a change in the mortality assumption of a two year adjustment would result in a 0.26% increase in the long
service awards accrued liability and 0.66% increase in the leave accrual liability.

10. Deferred income - Infrastructure

Movement during the year 

Balance at the beginning of the year 14,768,549 31,559,204
Amount surrendered to Provincial Treasury (14,768,549) (29,549,160)
Grants received during the year 65,716,000 73,200,000
Less Expenditure revenue enhancement (5,016,237) -
Less: Operational expenditure - Infrastructure (7,004,148) (13,737,343)
Less: Capital expenditure - Infrastructure (43,108,898) (46,704,152)

10,586,717 14,768,549

The deffered income -infrastructure is a conditional grant received for the upgrading of resorts. The grant is initially recognised
as a liability in the statement of financial position and subsequently as revenue when expensed in the statement of financial
performance.

11. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 8,997,757 17,294,046
Workmen's compensation 292,846 279,894
Accrual - Staff payments 132,584 141,497
Accrual - 13th cheque 954,968 914,895
Accrual - Salaries 3,785 23,912
Accrual - Board payments 7,279 12,078

10,389,219 18,666,322

12. Revenue payables to Provincial Fund

Revenue payables to Provincial Fund 857,178 614,726

Revenue collected on behalf of Department

Opening balance 614,726 4,546,090
Revenue collected 10,291,026 9,255,363
Revenue paid back (10,048,574) (13,162,355)
Less: Concession fee not collactable - (86,484)
Less: Concession fee payable to communities - (56,797)
Bad debts recovered - 118,909

857,178 614,726
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

13. Revenue

Parks revenue 8,639,562 7,714,356
Concessions 233,996 282,627
Tourism revenue 63,132 10,422
Other income 572,985 882,016
Interest received 958,014 1,151,797
Government grants & subsidies 101,295,000 80,873,000
Reimbursement-Tourism revenue 15,000 1,574,652
Grant-DEA - 1,860,378
Conditional grant income-Infrastructure 50,113,046 60,441,495
Grant-revenue enhancement 5,016,237 12,289,956

166,906,972 167,080,699

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Parks revenue 8,639,562 7,714,356
Concessions 233,996 282,627
Tourism revenue 63,132 10,422
Other income 572,985 882,016
Interest received 958,014 1,151,797

10,467,689 10,041,218

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 101,295,000 80,873,000
Reimbursement-Tourism revenue 15,000 1,574,652
Grant-DEA - 1,860,378
Conditional grant income-Infrastructure 50,113,046 60,441,495
Grant-revenue enhancement 5,016,237 12,289,956

156,439,283 157,039,481

14. Interest received

Interest received
Bank 958,014 1,151,797

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16     112



NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

15. Employee related costs

Basic salary 35,784,952 34,484,834
Medical aid - company contributions 1,858,252 1,676,914
UIF 259,382 248,089
WCA 271,315 266,856
SDL - 414,829
Leave pay provision charge (1,297,252) 953,268
Provident fund contribution 3,508,582 3,262,911
Long-service awards 332,978 653,561
13th Cheques 2,685,905 2,530,922
Housing benefits and allowances 2,467,520 2,544,929
Internship stipend 181,220 354,998

46,052,854 47,392,111

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer

Basic salary 731,959 639,329
 Allowances 87,500 50,000
13th cheque 17,731 -
Contributions to UIF,Medical and Pension Fund 38,263 47,995

875,453 737,324

Remuneration of chief finance officer

Basic salary 974,277 917,465
Allowances 156,000 156,000
13th cheque 62,442 59,305
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 57,913 66,445

1,250,632 1,199,215

Remuneration of senior management

Basic salary 4,154,393 4,022,498
Allowances 326,952 366,952
13th cheque 230,551 290,013
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 321,791 366,826
Long service award - 7,736
Leavy gratuity 23,070 41,526

5,056,757 5,095,551

53,235,696 54,424,201

16. Remuneration of board members

Board  fees 1,661,211 1,578,967
Cell phone allowances 63,900 40,800

1,725,111 1,619,767

17. Finance costs

Finance leases 11,010,376 11,182,781
Other interest paid 9,278 19,440

11,019,654 11,202,221
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2016 2015

18. Debt impairment

Bad debts written off 2,208,531 160,736

The debt impairment charge for the year represents management's best estimate of amounts which are doubtful.

19. General expenses

Advertising 6,270 10,542
Auditors remuneration 4,302,059 3,247,245
Bank charges 207,125 198,842
Cleaning 342,557 373,226
Cell phones - 39,042
Computer expenses 498,783 345,590
Consulting and professional fees 2,749,750 2,167,219
Supplies and consumables 1,694,143 1,347,812
Equipment & machinery rentals 127,590 115,146
Insurance 635,035 840,816
Community partnership - 71,022
Accomodation, conferences and workshops 615,073 568,747
Fleet management 1,331,524 1,111,113
Markerting research 1,602,847 2,492,849
Marketing campaigns and branding 1,081,797 1,312,676
Recruitment cost 138,861 243,961
Postage and courier 261 120
Printing and stationery 644,245 646,867
Road regravelling 7,058,756 7,010,941
Security 3,177,859 2,847,278
Staff welfare - 1,130
Subscriptions and membership fees 577,110 504,950
Telephone and fax 2,080,000 1,822,805
Staff training 58,381 12,529
S&T payments 1,504,785 1,012,246
Reservation system rental 149,887 230,928
Electricity 1,747,405 2,535,068
Staff uniform 11,700 383,077
Enterpreneur support 34,481 286,404
Study assistance 10,050 21,017
Employee wellness - 2,354
Risk management 43,420 23,940
Obsolete stock 43,861 50,168
Public relations and communications 149,526 -
Labour relation 17,100 68,400
Cost of sales 466,750 264,688
Quality assurance 18,430 -

33,127,421 32,210,758

20. Auditors' remuneration

Internal audit fees 445,191 88,658
External audit fees 3,856,869 3,158,587

4,302,060 3,247,245

21. Operating surplus

Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
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21. Operating surplus (continued)

Operating lease charges
Premises

Contractual amounts 50,048 382,580
Equipment

Contractual amounts - 60,457
50,048 443,037

Write-off / disposal of property, plant and equipment (332,956) (83,282)
Loss on exchange differences - 260
Assets transfer - 80,377,082
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6,420,054 10,236,600
Employee costs 53,235,696 54,424,201

22. Cash generated from operations

Surplus (deficit) 56,813,297 (35,563,668)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 6,420,054 10,236,600
Write-off/ disposal of property, plant and equipment 332,956 83,282
Transfer of assets-LEDET - 80,377,082
Finance costs - Finance leases 11,010,376 11,182,781
Debt impairment 2,208,531 160,736
Movements in provisions (1,584,000) 1,107,000
Grant income recognised (55,129,283) (62,301,874)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 121,719 174,321
Receivables from exchange transactions 1,095,033 (961,199)
Debt impairment (2,208,531) (160,736)
Prepayments 63,581 (104,651)
Payables from exchange transactions (8,277,103) (189,058)
Movement special funding-DEA (205,615) 675,507
Income received in advance (223,549) 31,267
Unearned revenue (13,564) 177,407

10,423,902 4,924,797
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23. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Capital committments already contracted for but not provided for
Outstanding purchase orders 15,503,016 56,808,931

Operating committments already contracted for but not provided for
Security 751,916 745,894
Hisa Reservation system - 82,590
Call save system 215,386 304,511
Professional consultants 1,328,705 10,067,009
Outstanding  orders 543,699 1,360,330
KPMG-Hotline service 65,809 132,585
KPMG-Internal audit 736,369 1,181,560
Tracker 71,671 -
Steiner services 135,928 466,631

3,849,483 14,341,110

Total capital commitments
Capital committments already contracted for but not yet provided for 15,503,016 56,808,931
Operating committments already contracted for but not yet provided for 3,849,483 14,341,110

19,352,499 71,150,041

24. Contingencies

The entity has contingent liabilities regarding disputes with three (3) service providers and its former board members with the
total  possible cash outflow of R 14,329,486 (2015: R 12,406,481)

Contingent liabilities 
The matter relating to Nkadimeng and other have been enrrolled for the 31August 2016.
The entity's contingent liabilities are disclosed individually as per the  table below.

Details
Mmazwi civil and construction 360,259 311,912
PH Selahle 42,386 36,698
Nkadimeng & other -former board members 13,720,453 11,879,180
Edmax 206,388 178,691

14,329,486 12,406,481

Contingent assets

The entity has contingent asset regarding the defaulted customer with the possible cash inflow of R 475 461 ( R 411 655
2014/15). The matter is handled by the state attorney office in Pretoria.

Details 
Leisurecon consortium Pty (Ltd) 475,461 411,655
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25. Related parties
`

Relationships
Parent department Limpopo Department of Economic Development,

Environment and Tourism
Members of key management NM Matlala - Chief Executive Officer

MS Manamela - Chief Financial Officer
TG Kotsedi -Company Secretary
SF Hlungwani -Executive Commercial Operations
LR Tshabalala - Executive Tourism and Marketing
TP Maleka - Executive HR

Board members KA Dipela  ( Chairperson)
MM Chikane  ( Deputy Chairperson)
OM Phasha
PP Motene
TE Mabunda
A De Klerk  (Dr)
OH Mafefe 
ME Nchabeleng (Kgoshigadi)
KPS Ntshavheni 
TG Nethengwe  (Dr)
SSS Sekororo  ( Kgoshi)

Audit Committee MG Mokoka
MP Mongalo
MY Mathabatha

A. The following services  paid for by LEDET are being used by LTA without any consideration:
Electricity from the following resorts operated by the entity:( Makuya, Rust de Winter, Nylsvlei, Doorndraai, D'Nyala and
Lekgalameetse)
Water from all the resorts operated by the entity.
Telephone at Rust de Winter and Makuya. 

B. The following services paid for by LTA, are also being used by LEDET without any consideration:
Telephone at D'Nyala , Nylsvlei, Doorndraai, Schuinsdraai, Lekgalameetse, and Nwanedi Resorts. 

C. The following assets are being used by LTA but being managed by  LEDET:
Water borehole at D'Nyala, Rust de Winter, Nwanedi and Makuya. 

D. The following offices are being managed by LTA but jointly used by LTA and LEDET:
D'Nyala ,Rust de Winter and Makuya. 

26. Members' emoluments

Key management emoluments are disclosed in detail in the Board's report.

27. Prior period errors

The correction of the prior year error(s) results in adjustments as follows:
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27. Prior period errors (continued)

Statement of financial position Balance as
previously
reported

Prior period
error

Balance
restated

Retained income/(Accumulated loss) 56,134,901 (12,705,825) 43,429,076
Work in progress(WIP) 45,316,922 (7,042,710) 38,274,212
Building 50,511,479 5,126,015 55,637,494
Machinery, plant & equipment 3,215,006 63,360 3,278,366
Office equipment 564,337 266 564,603
Accumulated depreciation 30,491,940 6,923 30,498,863
Receivables from exchange transactions 1,742,683 (8,397) 1,734,286
Payables from exchange transactions 18,111,545 554,775 18,666,320
Deferred income infrastracture 12,758,505 2,010,044 14,768,549

218,847,318 (11,995,549) 206,851,769

Statement of financial performance Balance as
previously
reported

Prior period
error

Balance
restated

General expenses 32,162,613 48,144 32,210,757
Office rental - 443,037 443,037
Repairs and maintanance 4,843,713 7,042,710 11,886,423
Depreciation 10,229,677 6,923 10,236,600
Grant revenue 14,300,000 (2,010,044) 12,289,956

61,536,003 5,530,770 67,066,773

Re-classification of transactions in general expenses Balance as
previously
reported

Prior period
error

Reclassified
amount

Marketing research 2,474,721 18,128 2,492,849
Marketng,campaigns & branding (promotions) 983,607 329,069 1,312,676
Equipment & machinery rental 516,527 (443,037) 73,490
Medical aid- contribution 266,856 1,410,058 1,676,914
WCA 653,562 (386,706) 266,856
Provident fund- contribution 1,676,914 1,585,977 3,262,891
Leave pay provision charge 3,262,911 (2,309,642) 953,269

9,835,098 203,847 10,038,945

Disclosure-Committments Balance
previuosly
reported

Prior period
error

Balance
reststed

Capital-oustanding orders 25,924,058 30,884,873 56,808,931
Contracts-security 1,437,387 (691,493) 745,894
Hisa reservation system 80,941 1,649 82,590
Call save system 315,456 (10,945) 304,511
Consulting 2,753,360 7,313,649 10,067,009
Oustanding orders 1,676,698 (316,368) 1,360,330
KPMG-Hotline services 132,585 - 132,585
EPWP 1,157,920 (1,157,920) -
KPMG-Internal audit 1,181,560 - 1,181,560
Steiner services - 466,631 466,631

34,659,965 36,490,076 71,150,041
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27. Prior period errors (continued)

Disclosure receivables-Age analysis Balance
previously
reported

Prior period
error

Balance
restated

Ageing receivables from non exchange transactions-current 2,767 13,944 16,711

Disclosure on contingent liabilities Balance
previously
reported

Prior period
error

Balance
restated

PH Selahle - 36,698 36,698
Mmazwi civil & construction 164,636 147,276 311,912
Edmax 94,318 84,373 178,691
Former board members 7,155,224 4,723,956 11,879,180

7,414,178 4,992,303 12,406,481

Contingent asset Balance
previously
reported

Prior period
error

Balance
restated

Leisurecon (Pty) Ltd - 411,655 411,655

28. Risk management

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:  liquidity  credit risks.

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 31 March 2016 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Finance lease 13,473,655 - 56,824,027 -
Trade and other payables 10,389,220 - - -

At 31 March 2015 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Finance lease 12,248,778 - 62,531,234 7,766,447
Trade and other payables 18,666,320 - - -
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28. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee
insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
`

Financial instrument 2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalent 18,286,284 30,175,842
Trade and other receivables 206,181 1,468,270

Market risk

29. Going concern

The Department of Economic Development, Environment and Tourism has confirmed the funding for Limpopo Tourism Agency
for the foreseable future. A letter of this effect has been received.

30. Events after the reporting date

The entity  has  undergone a  mandate change in that it is now responsible for only generic toursim marketing of the province.
The Provincial EXCO took resolution to transfer Limpopo Wildlife Resorts ( LWR) function to Department of Economic
Development Environment   and Tourism (LEDET) effect from the 1st April 2016. LWR budget for 2016/17 financial year is now
sitting with LEDET. 140  staff members affected by the transfer including support staff ( 129 LWR and 11 support ).

This will have impact on revenue collection which will then be accounted for by LEDETas well as management and  control of
all the resorts and assets related to LWR (both current and non current).

31. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 1,368,095 46,722
Interest on late payment of Telkom and Eskom 5,166 31,650
Adendum of incorrect advertisement - 2,433
SARS-penalities and interest on late payment - 136,157
Cancellation of advertised SCM manager post - 27,728
Reservation booking system  not fully implemented 99,112 1,123,405
KPMG-overruns 273,874 -

1,746,247 1,368,095

32. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 11,862,078 3,352,542
Less adjustment to prior period balance ** (3,926,482) -
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 1,872,620 8,509,536
Less: Amounts condoned (5,438,096) -

4,370,120 11,862,078

48
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32. Irregular expenditure (continued)

Details of irregular expenditure condoned
Condoned by (condoning authority)

Three (3) minimum quotations not obtained Accounting authority 1,723,464
Non submission of Tax clearance certificates Accounting authority 725,624
Utilization of contract whose terms has lapsed Accounting authority 2,989,008

5,438,096

** During the 2014/15 financial year, there was a contract which was disclosed as irregular expenditure due to the contract
amount exceeding allowed CIBD threshhold; upon which further clarification with CIBD officials during the current year, it came
to our attention the excess is allowed.

Irregular expenditure condoned

The board commisioned an investigation of the above irregular expenditure. The internal auditors were appointed to investigate
the said irregular expenditure and recommended that the expenditure be condoned as there was no financial loss from the
entity. 

The recommendation of the internal auditors were then accepted by the board and the irregular expenditure condoned.

33. Reconciliation between budget and cash flow statement

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the net cash generated from operating, investing and financing activities:

Operating activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement 10,423,902 6,934,841

Investing activities
Purchase property,plant & equipment (50,963,560) (41,354,277)

Financing activities
Net cash flow from financing activities 28,650,099 20,639,499
Net cash generated from operating, investing and financing activities (11,889,559) (13,779,937)

34. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

The information below explains the material variance between final budget and actual amounts as presented on the statement
of comparison between budget and actual amounts. 

Personnel Cost

The underspending of R 2 479 723 is as a result of accumulated funds on vacant position and resignation during the year.

Board expenditure.

The underspending of R 957 730 is as a result of virements made which increased the board's budget in circumventing
overspending.

Operating expenditure-Infrastracture.

The underspending of R 887 017 is as a result of delay in finalisation of projects.

General exenditure.

The overspending of R 162 719 is as a result of accruals for the prior year.
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34. Budget differences (continued)

Finance cost.

The underspending of R 97 557 is as of copier machine contract laosed.

Other capital expenditure.

The underspending of R 562 789  is as a result of late submission  procurement plan.

Capital expenditure-Infrastracture.

The overspending of R 689 721 infrastracture under budgeting for the financial year under review.
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